## **Dow University of Health Sciences**



## **Bidding Documents**

Single Stage – One Envelope Procedure
As per Rule 46 (1) of SPPR, 2010

IFB / NIT No: DUHS/DP/2025/329/333 Dated 10 November 2025

PROCUREMENT OF HOSPITAL FURNITURE & FIXTURES (NIT Ref. No. DUSH/DP/2025/331)



## **TABLE OF CONTENTS**

Part One	- Section I Instructions to Bidders	. 5
Instruction	ons to Bidders	. 6
A. Intro	duction	. 6
1.	Source of Funds	
2.	Eligible Bidders	
3.	Eligible Goods and Services	
4.	Cost of Bidding	
	Sidding Documents	
5.	Content of Bidding Documents	
6.	Clarification of Bidding Documents	
7.	Amendment of Bidding Documents	
	aration of Bids	
8.	Language of Bid	
9.	Documents Comprising the Bid	
10.	Bid Form	
11.	Bid Prices	
12.	Bid Currencies	
13.	Documents Establishing Bidder's Eligibility and Qualification	
14.	Documents Establishing Goods' Eligibility and Conformity to Bidding Documents	
15.	Bid Security	
16.	Period of Validity of Bids	
17.	Format and Signing of Bid	
	nission of Bids	
ט. Subn 18.	Sealing and Marking of Bids	
16. 19.	Deadline for Submission of Bids	
19. 20.	Late Bids	
20. 21.	Modification and Withdrawal of Bids	
F. Open	ing and Evaluation of Bids	12
22.	Opening of Bids by the Procuring agency	
23.	Clarification of Bids	
24.	Preliminary Examination	
25.	Evaluation and Comparison of Bids	
26.	Contacting the Procuring agency	
F Awar	d of Contract	
27.	Post-qualification	
28.	Award Criteria	
29.	Procuring agency's Right to Vary Quantities at Time of Award	
30.	Procuring agency's Right to Accept any Bid and to Reject any or All Bids	
31.	Notification of Award	
32.	Signing of Contract	
33.	Performance Security	
34.	Corrupt or Fraudulent Practices	
35.	Integrity Pact	
	- Section II General Conditions of Contract	
_	Conditions of Contract	
1.	Definitions	
2.	Application	
3.	Country of Origin	
4.	Technical Specifications	
5.	Use of Contract Documents and Information; Inspection and Audit by the Government	
6.	Patent Rights	19

7.	Performance Security	19
8.	Inspections and Tests	
9.	Packing	
10.	Delivery and Documents	
11.	Insurance	
12.	Transportation	
13.	Incidental Services	
14.	Warranty	
15.	Payment	
16. 17.	Prices	
17. 18.	Change Orders  Contract Amendments	
10. 19.	Assignment	
20.	Subcontracts	
20.	Delay in the Supplier's Performance	
22.	Liquidated Damages	
23.	Termination for Default	
24.	Force Majeure	
25.	Termination for Insolvency	
26.	Termination for Convenience	
27.	Resolution of disputes	
28.	Governing Language	
29.	Applicable Law	
30.	Notices	
31.	Taxes and Duties	
Part Two	(Procurement Specific Provisions)	. 26
Part Two	- Section I Invitation for Bids	. 27
Part Two	- Section II Bid Data Sheet	. <i>2</i> 9
Part Two	- Section III Special Conditions of Contract	. 34
Part Two Special C	- Section III Special Conditions of Contract	. 34 . 35
Part Two Special C	- Section III Special Conditions of Contract  Conditions of Contract	. <b>34</b> . <b>35</b> 35
Part Two Special C 1. 2.	- Section III Special Conditions of Contract  Definitions (GCC Clause 1)	. 34 . 35 35 35
Part Two Special C 1. 2. 3.	- Section III Special Conditions of Contract  Conditions of Contract  Definitions (GCC Clause 1)  Country of Origin (GCC Clause 3)  Technical Specifications (GCC Clause 4)	. 34 . 35 35 35
Part Two A Special Co 1. 2. 3. 4.	- Section III Special Conditions of Contract  Conditions of Contract  Definitions (GCC Clause 1)  Country of Origin (GCC Clause 3)  Technical Specifications (GCC Clause 4)  Performance Security (GCC Clause 7)	. 34 . 35 35 35 35
Part Two - Special C 1. 2. 3. 4. 5.	Performance Security (GCC Clause 7)  Packing (GCC Clause 9)  Performance Security (GCC Clause 7)  Packing (GCC Clause 9)	. 34 . 35 35 35 35 35
Part Two - Special C 1. 2. 3. 4. 5. 6.	Performance Security (GCC Clause 7) Packing (GCC Clause 9) Delivery and Documents (GCC Clause 10)	. 34 . 35 35 35 35 35
Part Two - Special C  1. 2. 3. 4. 5. 6. 7.	Performance Security (GCC Clause 7) Packing (GCC Clause 9) Delivery and Documents (GCC Clause 10) Insurance (GCC Clause 11)	. 34 . 35 35 35 35 35 35
Part Two 4 Special C 1. 2. 3. 4. 5. 6. 7. 8.	Performance Security (GCC Clause 7) Packing (GCC Clause 9) Delivery and Documents (GCC Clause 10) Delivery and Documents (GCC Clause 10) Delivery (GCC Clause 11) Warranty (GCC Clause 14)	. 34 . 35 35 35 35 35 35 36
Part Two 4  Special C  1. 2. 3. 4. 5. 6. 7. 8. 9.	Ponditions of Contract Definitions (GCC Clause 1) Country of Origin (GCC Clause 3) Technical Specifications (GCC Clause 4) Performance Security (GCC Clause 7) Packing (GCC Clause 9) Delivery and Documents (GCC Clause 10) Insurance (GCC Clause 11) Warranty (GCC Clause 14) Payment (GCC Clause 15)	. 34 . 35 35 35 35 35 35 36 36
Part Two 4  5 pecial C  1. 2. 3. 4. 5. 6. 7. 8. 9. 10.	Ponditions of Contract Definitions (GCC Clause 1) Country of Origin (GCC Clause 3) Technical Specifications (GCC Clause 4) Performance Security (GCC Clause 7) Packing (GCC Clause 9) Delivery and Documents (GCC Clause 10) Insurance (GCC Clause 11) Warranty (GCC Clause 14) Payment (GCC Clause 15) Prices (GCC Clause 16)	. 34 . 35 35 35 35 35 36 36 36
Part Two 4  5 pecial C  1. 2. 3. 4. 5. 6. 7. 8. 9. 10.	Performance Security (GCC Clause 1) Packing (GCC Clause 9) Delivery and Documents (GCC Clause 10) Delivery and Documents (GCC Clause 10) Delivery and CCC Clause 11) Warranty (GCC Clause 14) Payment (GCC Clause 15) Prices (GCC Clause 16) Liquidated Damages (GCC Clause 22)	. 34 . 35 35 35 35 35 36 36 36
Part Two 4  Special C  1. 2. 3. 4. 5. 6. 7. 8. 9. 10. 11. 12.	Ponditions of Contract Definitions (GCC Clause 1) Country of Origin (GCC Clause 3) Technical Specifications (GCC Clause 4) Performance Security (GCC Clause 7) Packing (GCC Clause 9) Delivery and Documents (GCC Clause 10) Insurance (GCC Clause 11) Warranty (GCC Clause 14) Payment (GCC Clause 15) Prices (GCC Clause 16) Liquidated Damages (GCC Clause 22) Resolution of Disputes (GCC Clause 27)	. 34 . 35 35 35 35 35 35 36 36 36 36
Part Two 4  Special C  1. 2. 3. 4. 5. 6. 7. 8. 9. 10. 11. 12. 13.	Performance Security (GCC Clause 1) Performance Security (GCC Clause 7) Packing (GCC Clause 9) Delivery and Documents (GCC Clause 10) Insurance (GCC Clause 11) Warranty (GCC Clause 14) Payment (GCC Clause 15) Prices (GCC Clause 16) Liquidated Damages (GCC Clause 22) Resolution of Disputes (GCC Clause 28)	. 34 . 35 35 35 35 35 36 36 36 36 36
Part Two 4  Special C  1. 2. 3. 4. 5. 6. 7. 8. 9. 10. 11. 12.	Performance Security (GCC Clause 1)  Performance Security (GCC Clause 7)  Packing (GCC Clause 9)  Delivery and Documents (GCC Clause 10)  Insurance (GCC Clause 11)  Warranty (GCC Clause 14)  Payment (GCC Clause 15)  Prices (GCC Clause 16)  Liquidated Damages (GCC Clause 22)  Resolution of Disputes (GCC Clause 28)  Applicable Law (GCC Clause 29)	. 34 . 35 35 35 35 35 36 36 36 36 36 36
Part Two 4  Special C  1. 2. 3. 4. 5. 6. 7. 8. 9. 10. 11. 12. 13. 14. 15.	Performance Security (GCC Clause 1) Delivery and Documents (GCC Clause 10) Delivery and Documents (GCC Clause 10) Insurance (GCC Clause 11) Warranty (GCC Clause 14) Payment (GCC Clause 15) Prices (GCC Clause 16) Liquidated Damages (GCC Clause 27) Governing Language (GCC Clause 28) Applicable Law (GCC Clause 29) Notices (GCC Clause 30)	. 34 . 35 35 35 35 35 36 36 36 36 36 37 37
Part Two 4  Special C  1. 2. 3. 4. 5. 6. 7. 8. 9. 10. 11. 12. 13. 14. 15.	Performance Security (GCC Clause 1)  Performance Security (GCC Clause 7)  Packing (GCC Clause 9)  Delivery and Documents (GCC Clause 10)  Insurance (GCC Clause 11)  Warranty (GCC Clause 14)  Payment (GCC Clause 15)  Prices (GCC Clause 16)  Liquidated Damages (GCC Clause 22)  Resolution of Disputes (GCC Clause 28)  Applicable Law (GCC Clause 29)	. 34 . 35 35 35 35 35 36 36 36 36 36 37 37
Part Two -  Special C  1. 2. 3. 4. 5. 6. 7. 8. 9. 10. 11. 12. 13. 14. 15.  Part Two -	Position III Special Conditions of Contract  Definitions (GCC Clause 1) Country of Origin (GCC Clause 3) Technical Specifications (GCC Clause 4) Performance Security (GCC Clause 7) Packing (GCC Clause 9) Delivery and Documents (GCC Clause 10) Insurance (GCC Clause 11) Warranty (GCC Clause 14) Payment (GCC Clause 15) Prices (GCC Clause 16) Liquidated Damages (GCC Clause 22) Resolution of Disputes (GCC Clause 27) Governing Language (GCC Clause 28) Applicable Law (GCC Clause 30)  Psection IV Schedule of Requirements	. 34 . 35 35 35 35 35 36 36 36 36 37 37
Part Two -  Special C  1. 2. 3. 4. 5. 6. 7. 8. 9. 10. 11. 12. 13. 14. 15.  Part Two -  Part Two -	Performance Security (GCC Clause 1)  Country of Origin (GCC Clause 3)  Technical Specifications (GCC Clause 4)  Performance Security (GCC Clause 7)  Packing (GCC Clause 9)  Delivery and Documents (GCC Clause 10)  Insurance (GCC Clause 11)  Warranty (GCC Clause 15)  Prices (GCC Clause 16)  Liquidated Damages (GCC Clause 22)  Resolution of Disputes (GCC Clause 27)  Governing Language (GCC Clause 28)  Applicable Law (GCC Clause 29)  Notices (GCC Clause 30)  - Section IV Schedule of Requirements  - Section V Technical Specifications	. 34 . 35 35 35 35 35 36 36 36 36 37 37 37
Part Two -  Special C  1. 2. 3. 4. 5. 6. 7. 8. 9. 10. 11. 12. 13. 14. 15.  Part Two -  Part Two -  Part Two -  Part Two -	Conditions of Contract  Definitions (GCC Clause 1) Country of Origin (GCC Clause 3) Technical Specifications (GCC Clause 4) Performance Security (GCC Clause 7) Packing (GCC Clause 9) Delivery and Documents (GCC Clause 10). Insurance (GCC Clause 11) Warranty (GCC Clause 14) Payment (GCC Clause 15) Prices (GCC Clause 16) Liquidated Damages (GCC Clause 22). Resolution of Disputes (GCC Clause 28). Applicable Law (GCC Clause 29). Notices (GCC Clause 30).  Section IV Schedule of Requirements - Section V Technical Specifications - Section VI Sample Forms	. 34 . 35 35 35 35 35 36 36 36 36 37 37 37 37
Part Two - 1. 2. 3. 4. 5. 6. 7. 8. 9. 10. 11. 12. 13. 14. 15. Part Two - Part Two - A. Bid Fo	Conditions of Contract  Definitions (GCC Clause 1) Country of Origin (GCC Clause 3). Technical Specifications (GCC Clause 4) Performance Security (GCC Clause 7) Packing (GCC Clause 9) Delivery and Documents (GCC Clause 10) Insurance (GCC Clause 11). Warranty (GCC Clause 14). Payment (GCC Clause 15). Prices (GCC Clause 16). Liquidated Damages (GCC Clause 22). Resolution of Disputes (GCC Clause 28) Applicable Law (GCC Clause 29) Notices (GCC Clause 30).  Section IV Schedule of Requirements  Section V Technical Specifications  Section VI Sample Forms	. 34 . 35 35 35 35 36 36 36 36 37 37 37 38 40 49
Part Two - 1. 2. 3. 4. 5. 6. 7. 8. 9. 10. 11. 12. 13. 14. 15. Part Two - Part Two - A. Bid Fo	Conditions of Contract Definitions (GCC Clause 1) Country of Origin (GCC Clause 3)	. 34 . 35 35 35 35 36 36 36 36 37 37 37 37 40 50
Part Two - 1. 2. 3. 4. 5. 6. 7. 8. 9. 10. 11. 12. 13. 14. 15. Part Two - Part Two - A. Bid Fo B. Bid S C. Conti	Conditions of Contract  Definitions (GCC Clause 1) Country of Origin (GCC Clause 3). Technical Specifications (GCC Clause 4) Performance Security (GCC Clause 7) Packing (GCC Clause 9) Delivery and Documents (GCC Clause 10) Insurance (GCC Clause 11). Warranty (GCC Clause 14). Payment (GCC Clause 15). Prices (GCC Clause 16). Liquidated Damages (GCC Clause 22). Resolution of Disputes (GCC Clause 28) Applicable Law (GCC Clause 29) Notices (GCC Clause 30).  Section IV Schedule of Requirements  Section V Technical Specifications  Section VI Sample Forms	. 34 . 35 35 35 35 36 36 36 36 36 37 37 37 37 37 37

E. Bank Guarantee for Advance Payment	55
F. Manufacturer's Authorization Form	56
G. Integrity Pact (AFFIDAVIT)	57
Sample Forms	58



# Part One - Section I Instructions to Bidders



#### Instructions to Bidders

#### A. Introduction

#### 1. Source of Funds

- 1.1 The Procuring agency has allocated funds / received / applied for loan / grant / federal / provincial / local government funds from the source(s) indicated in the bidding data in various currencies towards the cost of the project / schemes specified in the bidding data and it is intended that part of the proceeds of this loan / grant / funds / will be applied to eligible payments under the contract for which these bidding documents are issued.
- 1.2 Payment by the Fund will be made by procuring agency from university funds or only at the request of the Procuring agency and upon approval by the Government of Sindh., and in case of a project will be subject in all respect to the terms and conditions of the agreement. The Project Agreement prohibits a withdrawal from the allocated fund account for the purpose of any payment to persons or entities, or for any import of goods, if such payment or import, to the knowledge of the Federal Government / Sindh Government, is prohibited by a decision of the United Nations Security Council taken under Chapter VII of the Charter of the United Nations. No party other than the Procuring agency shall derive any rights from the Project Agreement or have any claim to the allocated fund proceeds.

#### 2. Eligible Bidders

- 2.1 This Invitation for Bids is open to all suppliers from eligible sources as defined in the SPP Rules, 2010 (Amended) and its Bidding Documents except as provided hereinafter.
- 2.2 Bidders should not be associated, or have been associated in the past, directly or indirectly, with a firm or any of its affiliates which have been engaged by the Procuring agency to provide consulting services for the preparation of the design, specifications, and other documents to be used for the procurement of the goods to be purchased under this Invitation for Bids.
- 2.3 Government-owned enterprises in the Province of Sindh may participate only if they are legally and financially autonomous, if they operate under commercial law, and if they are not a dependent agency of the Government of Sindh.
- 2.4 Bidders intend to enter into an agreement or under an existing agreement in the form of a Joint Venture (JV) or Consortium shall not be eligible, unless otherwise specified in the Bid Data Sheet.
- 2.5 Bidders shall not be eligible to bid if they are under a declaration of ineligibility for corrupt and fraudulent practices issued by any government organization in accordance with sub-clause 34.1.
- 2.6 The bidder must be registered with E-Pak Acquisition and Disposal Systems (EPADS) of Sindh Public Procurement Regulatory Authority (SPPRA).

#### 3. Eligible Goods and Services

- 3.1 All goods and related services to be supplied under the contract shall have their origin in eligible source countries, defined in the SPP Rules, 2010 (Amended) and its Bidding Documents, and all expenditures made under the contract will be limited to such goods and services.
- 3.2 For purposes of this clause, "origin" means the place where the goods are mined, grown, or produced, or the place from which the related services are supplied. Goods are produced when, through manufacturing, processing, or substantial and major assembly of components, a commercially recognized product results that is

- substantially different in basic characteristics or in purpose or utility from its components.
- 3.3 The origin of goods and services is distinct from the nationality of the Bidder

#### 4. Cost of Bidding

4.1 The Bidder shall bear all costs associated with the preparation and submission of its bid, and the Procuring agency named in the Bid Data Sheet, hereinafter referred to as "the Procuring agency," will in no case be responsible or liable for those costs, regardless of the conduct or outcome of the bidding process.

### **B.** The Bidding Documents

#### 5. Content of Bidding Documents

- 5.1 the bidding documents include:
  - a. Instructions to Bidders (ITB)
  - b. Bid Data Sheet
  - c. General Conditions of Contract (GCC)
  - d. Special Conditions of Contract (SCC)
  - e. Schedule of Requirements
  - f. Technical Specifications
  - g. Bid Form and Price Schedules
  - h. Bid Security Form
  - i. Contract Form
  - j. Performance Security Form
  - k. Manufacturer's Authorization Form
- 5.2 The Bidder is expected to examine all instructions, forms, terms, and specifications in the bidding documents. Failure to furnish all information required by the bidding documents or to submit a bid not substantially responsive to the bidding documents in every respect will be at the Bidder's risk and may result in the rejection of its bid.

#### 6. Clarification of Bidding Documents

6.1 An interested Bidder requiring any clarification of the bidding documents may notify the Procuring agency in writing. The Procuring agency will respond in writing to any request for clarification of the bidding documents which it receives no later than five working days prior to the deadline for the submission of bids prescribed in the Bid Data Sheet. Written copies of the Procuring agency's response (including an explanation of the query but without identifying the source of inquiry) will be sent to all interested bidders that have received the bidding documents.

#### 7. Amendment of Bidding Documents

- 7.1 At any time prior to the deadline for submission of bids, the Procuring agency, for any reason, whether at its own initiative or in response to a clarification requested by a interested Bidder, may modify the bidding documents by amendment.
- 7.2 All interested bidders that have received the bidding documents will be notified of the amendment in writing, and will be binding on them.
- 7.3 In order to allow interested bidders reasonable time in which to take the amendment into account in preparing their bids, the Procuring agency, at its discretion, may extend the deadline for the submission of bids.



### C. Preparation of Bids

#### 8. Language of Bid

8.1 The bid prepared by the Bidder, as well as all correspondence and documents relating to the bid exchanged by the Bidder and the Procuring agency shall be written in the language specified in the Bid Data Sheet. Supporting documents and printed literature furnished by the Bidder may be in another language provided they are accompanied by an accurate translation of the relevant passages in the language specified in the Bid Data Sheet, in which case, for purposes of interpretation of the Bid, the translation shall govern.

#### 9. Documents Comprising the Bid

- 9.1 The bid prepared by the Bidder shall comprise the following components:
  - a. a Bid Form and a Price Schedule completed in accordance with ITB Clauses 10, 11, and 12;
  - documentary evidence established in accordance with ITB Clause 13 that the Bidder is eligible to bid and is qualified to perform the contract if its bid is accepted;
  - c. documentary evidence established in accordance with ITB Clause 14 that the goods and ancillary services to be supplied by the Bidder are eligible goods and services and conform to the bidding documents; and
  - d. bid security furnished in accordance with ITB Clause 15.

#### 10. Bid Form

10.1 The Bidder shall complete the Bid Form and the appropriate Price Schedule furnished in the bidding documents, indicating the goods to be supplied, a brief description of the goods, their country of origin, quantity, and prices.

#### 11. Bid Prices

- 11.1 The Bidder shall indicate on the appropriate Price Schedule the unit prices (where applicable) and total bid price of the goods it proposes to supply under the contract.
- 11.2 Prices indicated on the relevant Price Schedule shall be on delivered duty paid (DDP) basis. The price of other (incidental) services, if any, listed in the Bid Data Sheet will be entered separately.
- 11.3 The Bidder's separation of price components in accordance with ITB Clause 11.2 above will be solely for the purpose of facilitating the comparison of bids by the Procuring agency and will not in any way limit the Procuring agency's right to contract on any of the terms offered.
- 11.4 Prices quoted by the Bidder shall be fixed during the Bidder's performance of the contract and not subject to variation on any account, unless otherwise specified in the Bid Data Sheet. A bid submitted with an adjustable price quotation will be treated as nonresponsive and will be rejected, pursuant to ITB Clause 24. If, however, in accordance with the Bid Data Sheet, prices quoted by the Bidder shall be subject to adjustment during the performance of the contract, a bid submitted with a fixed price quotation will not be rejected, but the price adjustment would be treated as zero.

#### 12. Bid Currencies

12.1 Prices shall be quoted in Pak Rupees unless otherwise specified in the Bid Data Sheet.



#### 13. Documents Establishing Bidder's Eligibility and Qualification

- 13.1 Pursuant to ITB Clause 9, the Bidder shall furnish, as part of its bid, documents establishing the Bidder's eligibility to bid and its qualifications to perform the contract if its bid is accepted.
- 13.2 The documentary evidence of the Bidder's eligibility to bid shall establish to the Procuring agency's satisfaction that the Bidder, at the time of submission of its bid, is from an eligible country as defined under ITB Clause 2.
- 13.3 The documentary evidence of the Bidder's qualifications to perform the contract if its bid is accepted shall establish to the Procuring agency's satisfaction:
  - a. that, in the case of a Bidder offering to supply goods under the contract which the Bidder did not manufacture or otherwise produce, the Bidder has been duly authorized by the goods' Manufacturer or producer to supply the goods in the Procuring agency's country;
  - b. that the Bidder has the financial, technical, and production capability necessary to perform the contract;
  - c. that, in the case of a Bidder not doing business within the Procuring agency's country, the Bidder is or will be (if awarded the contract) represented by an Agent in that country equipped, and able to carry out the Supplier's maintenance, repair, and spare parts-stocking obligations prescribed in the Conditions of Contract and/or Technical Specifications; and
  - d. that the Bidder meets the qualification criteria listed in the Bid Data Sheet.

## 14. Documents Establishing Goods' Eligibility and Conformity to Bidding Documents

- 14.1 Pursuant to ITB Clause 9, the Bidder shall furnish, as part of its bid, documents establishing the eligibility and conformity to the bidding documents of all goods and services which the Bidder proposes to supply under the contract.
- 14.2 The documentary evidence of the eligibility of the goods and services shall consist of a statement in the Price Schedule of the country of origin of the goods and services offered which shall be confirmed by a certificate of origin issued at the time of shipment.
- 14.3 The documentary evidence of conformity of the goods and services to the bidding documents may be in the form of literature, drawings, and data, and shall consist of:
  - a. a detailed description of the essential technical and performance characteristics of the goods;
  - b. a list giving full particulars, including available sources and current prices of spare parts, special tools, etc., necessary for the proper and continuing functioning of the goods for a period to be specified in the Bid Data Sheet, following commencement of the use of the goods by the Procuring agency; and
  - c. an item-by-item commentary on the Procuring agency's Technical Specifications demonstrating substantial responsiveness of the goods and services to those specifications, or a statement of deviations and exceptions to the provisions of the Technical Specifications.
- 14.4 For purposes of the commentary to be furnished pursuant to ITB Clause 14.3(c) above, the Bidder shall note that standards for workmanship, material, and equipment, as well as references to brand names or catalogue numbers designated by the Procuring agency in its Technical Specifications, are intended to be descriptive only and not restrictive. The Bidder may substitute alternative standards, brand names, and/or catalogue numbers in its bid, provided that it demonstrates to the Procuring agency's satisfaction that the substitutions ensure substantial equivalence to those designated in the Technical Specifications.



#### 15. Bid Security

- 15.1 Pursuant to ITB Clause 9, the Bidder shall furnish, as part of its bid, a bid security in the amount specified in the Bid Data Sheet.
- 15.2 The bid security is required to protect the Procuring agency against the risk of Bidder's conduct which would warrant the security's forfeiture, pursuant to ITB Clause 15.7.
- 15.3 The bid security shall be in Pak. Rupees and shall be in one of the following forms:
  - a. a bank guarantee or an irrevocable letter of credit issued by a reputable bank located in the Procuring agency's country, in the form provided in the bidding documents or another form acceptable to the Procuring agency and valid for thirty (30) days beyond the validity of the bid; or
  - b. irrevocable encashable on-demand Bank call-deposit.
- 15.4 Any bid not secured in accordance with ITB Clauses 15.1 and 15.3 will be rejected by the Procuring agency as nonresponsive, pursuant to ITB Clause 24.
- 15.5 Unsuccessful bidders' bid security will be discharged or returned as promptly as possible but not later than thirty (30) days after the expiration of the period of bid validity prescribed by the Procuring agency pursuant to ITB Clause 16.
- 15.6 The successful Bidder's bid security will be discharged upon the Bidder signing the contract, pursuant to ITB Clause 32, and furnishing the performance security, pursuant to ITB Clause 33.
- 15.7 The bid security may be forfeited:
  - a. if a Bidder withdraws its bid during the period of bid validity specified by the Bidder on the Bid Form; or
  - b. in the case of a successful Bidder, if the Bidder fails:
    - i. to sign the contract in accordance with ITB Clause 32; or
    - ii. to furnish performance security in accordance with ITB Clause 33.

#### 16. Period of Validity of Bids

- 16.1 Bids shall remain valid for the period specified in the Bid Data Sheet after the date of bid opening prescribed by the Procuring agency, pursuant to ITB Clause 19. A bid valid for a shorter period shall be rejected by the Procuring agency as nonresponsive.
- 16.2 In exceptional circumstances, the Procuring agency may solicit the Bidder's consent to an extension of the period of validity. The request and the responses thereto shall be made in writing. The bid security provided under ITB Clause 15 shall also be suitably extended. A Bidder may refuse the request without forfeiting its bid security. A Bidder granting the request will not be required nor permitted to modify its bid, except as provided in the bidding document.

#### 17. Format and Signing of Bid

- 17.1 The Bidder shall prepare an original and the number of copies of the bid indicated in the Bid Data Sheet, clearly marking each "ORIGINAL BID" and "COPY OF BID," as appropriate. In the event of any discrepancy between them, the original shall govern.
- 17.2 The original and the copy or copies of the bid shall be typed or written in indelible ink and shall be signed by the Bidder or a person or persons duly authorized to bind the Bidder to the contract. All pages of the bid, except for un-amended printed literature, shall be initialed by the person or persons signing the bid.
- 17.3 Any interlineations, erasures, or overwriting shall be valid only if they are initialed by the person or persons signing the bid.
- 17.4 The Bidder shall furnish information as described in the Form of Bid on commissions or gratuities, if any, paid or to be paid to agents relating to this Bid, and to contract execution if the Bidder is awarded the contract.

#### D. Submission of Bids

#### 18. Sealing and Marking of Bids

- 18.1 The bid shall be typed and shall be signed by the Bidder, the person signing the bid shall initial all pages of the bid. The Bidder shall submit (upload) typed Bid in original scanned copy through SPPRA (EPADS) portal, which shall be signed by the Bidder to bind the Bidder to the contract. Any interlineations, erasures, or overwriting shall be valid only if they are initialed by the person signing the bid. All bidding documents are to be duly attested (signed and stamped) by the authorized person of the bidder.
- 18.2 In Procedures of Open Competitive Bidding the Envelope means encrypted electronic file(s). The Bid shall be submitted through the electronic procurement system of SPPRA (EPADS) and uploaded with the Technical Proposal and Financial Proposal (encrypted files as specified in EPADS). The original bid security scanned copy must be uploaded on EPADS. The original bid security shall be submitted at the address mentioned in the NIT/IFB/Bidding Documents/BDS. Bids shall: be addressed to the Procuring Agency at the address given in the Bid Data Sheet; and bear the title of procurement Activity indicated in the Bid Data Sheet.

#### 19. Deadline for Submission of Bids

- 19.1 Bids must be received by the Procuring agency through SPPRA (EPADS) portal not later than the time and date specified in the Bid Data Sheet.
- 19.2 The Procuring agency may, at its discretion, extend this deadline for the submission of bids by amending the bidding documents in accordance with ITB Clause 7, in which case all rights and obligations of the Procuring agency and bidders previously subject to the deadline will thereafter be subject to the deadline as extended.

#### 20. Late Bids

20.1 Any bid received by the Procuring agency after the deadline for submission of bids prescribed by the Procuring agency pursuant to ITB Clause 19 will be rejected and returned unopened to the Bidder.

#### 21. Modification and Withdrawal of Bids

- 21.1 The Bidder may modify or withdraw its bid after the bid's submission, provided that written notice of the modification, including substitution or withdrawal of the bids, is received by the Procuring agency prior to the deadline prescribed for submission of bids.
- 21.2 The Bidder's modification or withdrawal notice shall be prepared, sealed, marked, and dispatched in accordance with the provisions of ITB Clause 18. by a signed confirmation copy, postmarked not later than the deadline for submission of bids.
- 21.3 No bid may be modified after the deadline for submission of bids.
- 21.4 No bid may be withdrawn in the interval between the deadline for submission of bids and the expiration of the period of bid validity specified by the Bidder on the Bid Form. Withdrawal of a bid during this interval may result in the Bidder's forfeiture of its bid security, pursuant to the ITB Clause 15.7.



### E. Opening and Evaluation of Bids

#### 22. Opening of Bids by the Procuring agency

- 22.1 The Procuring agency will open all bids (electronically from SPPRA (EPADS) portal) in the presence of bidders' representatives who choose to attend, at the time, on the date, and at the place specified in the Bid Data Sheet. The bidders' representatives who are present shall sign a register evidencing their attendance.
- 22.2 The bidders' names, bid modifications or withdrawals, bid prices, discounts, and the presence or absence of requisite bid security and such other details as the Procuring agency, at its discretion, may consider appropriate, will be announced at the opening. No bid shall be rejected at bid opening, except for late bids, which shall be returned unopened to the Bidder pursuant to ITB Clause 20.
- 22.3 Bids (and modifications sent pursuant to ITB Clause 21.2) that are not opened electronically and read out at bid opening shall not be considered further for evaluation, irrespective of the circumstances, including but not limited to bugs, viruses, system glitches, not readable file etc. Withdrawn bids will not be opened.
- 22.4 The Procuring agency will prepare minutes of the bid opening.

#### 23. Clarification of Bids

23.1 During evaluation of the bids, the Procuring agency may, at its discretion, ask the Bidder for a clarification of its bid. The request for clarification and the response shall be in writing, and no change in the prices or substance of the bid shall be sought, offered, or permitted.

#### 24. Preliminary Examination

- 24.1 The Procuring agency will examine the bids to determine whether they are complete, whether any computational errors have been made, whether required sureties have been furnished, whether the documents have been properly signed, and whether the bids are generally in order.
- 24.2 Arithmetical errors will be rectified on the following basis. If there is a discrepancy between the unit price and the total price that is obtained by multiplying the unit price and quantity, the unit price shall prevail, and the total price shall be corrected. If the Supplier does not accept the correction of the errors, its bid will be rejected, and its bid security may be forfeited. If there is a discrepancy between words and figures, the amount in words will prevail.
- 24.3 The Procuring agency may waive any minor informality, nonconformity, or irregularity in a bid which does not constitute a material deviation, provided such waiver does not prejudice or affect the relative ranking of any Bidder.
- 24.4 Prior to the detailed evaluation, pursuant to ITB Clause 25 the Procuring agency will determine the substantial responsiveness of each bid to the bidding documents. For purposes of these Clauses, a substantially responsive bid is one which conforms to all the terms and conditions of the bidding documents without material deviations. Deviations from, or objections or reservations to critical provisions, such as those concerning Bid Security (ITB Clause 15), Applicable Law (GCC Clause 30), and Taxes and Duties (GCC Clause 32), will be deemed to be a material deviation. The Procuring agency's determination of a bid's responsiveness is to be based on the contents of the bid itself without recourse to extrinsic evidence.
- 24.5 If a bid is not substantially responsive, it will be rejected by the Procuring agency and may not subsequently be made responsive by the Bidder by correction of the nonconformity.



#### 25. Evaluation and Comparison of Bids

- 25.1 The Procuring agency will evaluate and compare the bids which have been determined to be substantially responsive, pursuant to ITB Clause 24.
- 25.2 The Procuring agency's evaluation of a bid will be on delivered duty paid (DDP) price inclusive of prevailing taxes and duties and will exclude any allowance for price adjustment during the period of execution of the contract, if provided in the bid.
- 25.3 The Procuring agency's evaluation of a bid will take into account, in addition to the bid price quoted in accordance with ITB Clause 11.2, one or more of the following factors as specified in the Bid Data Sheet, and quantified in ITB Clause 25.4:
  - a. incidental costs
  - b. delivery schedule offered in the bid;
  - c. deviations in payment schedule from that specified in the Special Conditions of Contract;
  - d. the cost of components, mandatory spare parts, and service (if any);
  - e. the availability Procuring agency of spare parts and after- sales services for the equipment offered in the bid (if any);
  - f. the projected operating and maintenance costs during the life of the equipment (if any);
  - g. the performance and productivity of the equipment offered; and/or
  - h. other specific criteria indicated in the Bid Data Sheet and/or in the Technical Specifications.
- 25.4 For factors retained in the Bid Data Sheet pursuant to ITB 25.3, one or more of the following quantification methods will be applied, as detailed in the Bid Data Sheet:
  - a. Incidental costs provided by the bidder will be added by Procuring agency to the delivered duty paid (DDP) price at the final destination.
  - b. Delivery schedule.
    - (i) The Procuring agency requires that the goods under the Invitation for Bids shall be delivered at the time specified in the Schedule of Requirements, which will be treated as the base; a delivery "adjustment" will be calculated for bids by applying a percentage, specified in the Bid Data Sheet, of the DDP price for each week of delay beyond the base, and this will be added to the bid price for evaluation. No credit shall be given to early delivery; **or**
    - (ii) The goods covered under this invitation are required to be delivered (shipped) within an acceptable range of weeks specified in the Schedule of Requirement. No credit will be given to earlier deliveries, and bids offering delivery beyond this range will be treated as nonresponsive. Within this acceptable range, an adjustment per week, as specified in the Bid Data Sheet, will be added for evaluation to the bid price of bids offering deliveries later than the earliest delivery period specified in the Schedule of Requirements.
  - c. Deviation in payment schedule.
    - (i) Bidders shall state their bid price for the payment schedule outlined in the SCC. Bids will be evaluated on the basis of this base price. Bidders are, however, permitted to state an alternative payment schedule and indicate the reduction in bid price they wish to offer for such alternative payment schedule. The Procuring agency may consider the alternative payment schedule offered by the selected Bidder; or
    - (ii) The SCC stipulates the payment schedule offered by the Procuring agency. If a bid deviates from the schedule and if such deviation is

considered acceptable to the Procuring agency, the bid will be evaluated by calculating interest earned for any earlier payments involved in the terms outlined in the bid as compared with those stipulated in this invitation, at the rate per annum specified in the Bid Data Sheet.

d. Specific qualification/evaluation criteria indicated in the Bid [Data Sheet and/or in the Technical Specifications. The relevant qualification/evaluation method shall be detailed in the Bid Data Sheet and/or in the Technical Specifications.

#### 26. Contacting the Procuring agency

- 26.1 Subject to ITB Clause 23, no Bidder shall contact the Procuring agency on any matter relating to its bid, from the time of the bid opening to the time the contract is awarded. If the Bidder wishes to bring additional information to the notice of the Procuring agency, it should do so in writing.
- 26.2 Any effort by a Bidder to influence the Procuring agency in its decisions on bid evaluation, bid comparison, or contract award may result in the rejection of the Bidder's bid

### F. Award of Contract

#### 27. Post-qualification

- 27.1 In the absence of prequalification, the Procuring agency will determine to its satisfaction whether the Bidder that is selected as having submitted the lowest evaluated responsive bid is qualified to perform the contract satisfactorily, in accordance with the criteria listed in ITB Clause 13.3.
- 27.2 The determination will take into account the Bidder's financial, technical, and production capabilities. It will be based upon an examination of the documentary evidence of the Bidder's qualifications submitted by the Bidder, pursuant to ITB Clause 13.3, as well as such other information as the Procuring agency deems necessary and appropriate.
- 27.3 An affirmative determination will be a prerequisite for award of the contract to the Bidder. A negative determination will result in rejection of the Bidder's bid, in which event the Procuring agency will proceed to the next lowest evaluated bid to make a similar determination of that Bidder's capabilities to perform satisfactorily.

#### 28. Award Criteria

28.1 Subject to ITB Clause 30, the Procuring agency will award the contract to the successful Bidder whose bid has been determined to be substantially responsive and has been determined to be the most advantageous bid, provided further that the Bidder is determined to be qualified to perform the contract satisfactorily.

#### 29. Procuring agency's Right to Vary Quantities at Time of Award

29.1 The Procuring agency reserves the right at the time of contract award to increase or decrease, the quantity of goods and services originally specified in the Schedule of Requirements without any change in unit price or other terms and conditions.



#### 30. Procuring agency's Right to Accept any Bid and to Reject any or All Bids

30.1 The Procuring agency reserves the right to accept or reject any bid, and to annul the bidding process and reject all bids at any time prior to contract award, without thereby incurring any liability to the affected Bidder or bidders or any obligation to inform the affected Bidder or bidders of the grounds for the Procuring agency's action.

#### 31. Notification of Award

- 31.1 Prior to the expiration of the period of bid validity, the Procuring agency will notify the successful Bidder in writing by registered letter or by cable, to be confirmed in writing by registered letter, that its bid has been accepted.
- 31.2 The notification of award will constitute the formation of the Contract.
- 31.3 Upon the successful Bidder's furnishing of the performance security pursuant to ITB Clause 33, the Procuring agency will promptly notify each unsuccessful Bidder and will discharge its bid security, pursuant to ITB Clause 15.

#### 32. Signing of Contract

- 32.1 At the same time as the Procuring agency notifies the successful Bidder that its bid has been accepted, the Procuring agency will send the Bidder the Contract Form provided in the bidding documents, incorporating all agreements between the parties.
- Within thirty (30) days of receipt of the Contract Form, the successful Bidder shall sign and date the contract and return it to the Procuring agency.

#### 33. Performance Security

- 33.1 Within twenty (20) days of the receipt of notification of award from the Procuring agency, the successful Bidder shall furnish the performance security in accordance with the Conditions of Contract, in the Performance Security Form provided in the bidding documents, or in another form acceptable to the Procuring agency.
- 33.2 Failure of the successful Bidder to comply with the requirement of ITB Clause 32 or ITB Clause 33.1 shall constitute sufficient grounds for the annulment of the award and forfeiture of the bid security, in which event the Procuring agency may make the award to the next lowest evaluated Bidder or call for new bids.

#### 34. Corrupt or Fraudulent Practices

- 34.1 The Government of Sindh requires that Procuring agency's (including beneficiaries of donor agencies' loans), as well as Bidders/Suppliers/Contractors under Government-financed or Procuring Agency-financed contracts, observe the highest standard of ethics during the procurement and execution of such contracts. In pursuance of this policy, the SPPRA, in accordance with the SPP Act, 2009 and Rules made thereunder:
  - a. defines, for the purposes of this provision, the terms set forth below as follows:
    - i. "corrupt practice" means the offering, giving, receiving or soliciting of anything of value to influence the action of a public official in the procurement process or in contract execution; and
    - ii. "fraudulent practice" means a misrepresentation of facts in order to influence a procurement process or the execution of a contract to the detriment of the Procuring agency, and includes collusive practice among Bidders (prior to or after bid submission) designed to establish bid prices at artificial non- competitive levels and to deprive the Procuring agency of the benefits of free and open competition;



- b. will reject a proposal for award if it determines that the Bidder recommended for award has engaged in corrupt or fraudulent practices in competing for the contract in question;
- c. will declare a firm ineligible, either indefinitely or for a stated period of time, to be awarded a Government-financed contract if it at any time determines that the firm has engaged in corrupt or fraudulent practices in competing for, or in executing, a Government-financed contract.
- 34.2 Furthermore, Bidders shall be aware of the provision stated in sub-clause 5.4 and sub-clause 24.1 of the General Conditions of Contract.

#### 35. Integrity Pact

35.1 The bidder shall sign and stamp the Integrity Pact provided in the "Sample Forms" Section of these bidding documents for all Provincial Government procurement contracts. Failure to such Integrity Pact shall make the bidder non-responsive



# Part One - Section II General Conditions of Contract



## **General Conditions of Contract**

#### 1. Definitions

- 1.1 In this Contract, the following terms shall be interpreted as indicated:
  - a. "The Contract" means the agreement entered into between the Procuring agency and the Supplier, as recorded in the Contract Form signed by the parties, including all attachments and appendices thereto and all documents incorporated by reference therein.
  - b. "The Contract Price" means the price payable to the Supplier under the Contract for the full and proper performance of its contractual obligations.
  - c. "The Goods" means all of the equipment, machinery, and/or other materials which the Supplier is required to supply to the Procuring agency under the Contract.
  - d. "The Services" means those services ancillary to the supply of the Goods, such as transportation and insurance, and any other incidental services, such as installation, commissioning, provision of technical assistance, training, and other such obligations of the Supplier covered under the Contract.
  - e. "GCC" means the General Conditions of Contract contained in this section.
  - f. "SCC" means the Special Conditions of Contract.
  - g. "The Procuring agency" means the organization purchasing the Goods, as named in SCC.
  - h. "The Procuring agency's country" is the country named in SCC.
  - i. "The Supplier" means the individual or firm supplying the Goods and Services under this Contract.
  - j. "The Project Site," where applicable, means the place or places named in SCC.
  - k. "Day" means calendar day.
  - I. "Envelope" means encrypted electronic file.

#### 2. Application

2.1 These General Conditions shall apply to the extent that they are not superseded by provisions of other parts of the Contract.

#### 3. Country of Origin

- 3.1 All Goods and Services supplied under the Contract shall have their origin in the countries and territories eligible under the rules and `further elaborated in the SCC or Technical Specifications.
- 3.2 For purposes of this Clause, "origin" means the place where the Goods were mined, grown, or produced, or from which the Services are supplied. Goods are produced when, through manufacturing, processing, or substantial and major assembly of components, a commercially recognized new product results that is substantially different in basic characteristics or in purpose or utility from its components.
- 3.3 The origin of Goods and Services is distinct from the nationality of the Manufacturer / Supplier.

#### 4. Technical Specifications

4.1 The Goods supplied under this Contract shall conform to the standards mentioned in the Technical Specifications, and, when no applicable standard is mentioned, to the authoritative standards appropriate to the Goods' country of origin. Such standards shall be the latest issued by the concerned institution.

#### 5. Use of Contract Documents and Information; Inspection and Audit by the Government

- 5.1 The Supplier shall not, without the Procuring agency's prior written consent, disclose the Contract, or any provision thereof, or any specification, plan, drawing, pattern, sample, or information furnished by or on behalf of the Procuring agency in connection therewith, to any person other than a person employed by the Supplier in the performance of the Contract. Disclosure to any such employed person shall be made in confidence and shall extend only so far as may be necessary for purposes of such performance.
- 5.2 The Supplier shall not, without the Procuring agency's prior written consent, make use of any document or information enumerated in GCC Clause 5.1 except for purposes of performing the Contract.
- 5.3 Any document, other than the Contract itself, enumerated in GCC Clause 5.1 shall remain the property of the Procuring agency and shall be returned (all copies) to the Procuring agency on completion of the Supplier's performance under the Contract if so required by the Procuring agency.
- 5.4 The Supplier shall permit the Procuring agency to inspect the Supplier's accounts and records relating to the performance of the Supplier and to have them audited by auditors appointed by the procuring agency, if so required.

#### 6. Patent Rights

6.1 The Supplier shall indemnify the Procuring agency against all third-party claims of infringement of patent, trademark, or industrial design rights arising from use of the Goods or any part thereof in the Procuring agency's country.

#### 7. Performance Security

- 7.1 Within twenty (20) days of receipt of the notification of Contract award, the successful Bidder shall furnish to the Procuring agency the performance security in the amount specified in SCC.
- 7.2 The proceeds of the performance security shall be payable to the Procuring agency as compensation for any loss resulting from the Supplier's failure to complete its obligations under the Contract.
- 7.3 The performance security shall be denominated in the currency of the Contract acceptable to the Procuring agency and shall be in one of the following forms:
  - a. a bank guarantee or an irrevocable letter of credit issued by a reputable bank located in the Procuring agency's country, in the form provided in the bidding documents or another form acceptable to the Procuring agency; or
  - b. a cashier's or certified check.
- 7.4 The performance security will be discharged by the Procuring agency and returned to the Supplier not later than thirty (30) days following the date of completion of the Supplier's performance obligations under the Contract, including any warranty obligations, unless specified otherwise in SCC.



#### 8. Inspections and Tests

- 8.1 The Procuring agency or its representative shall have the right to inspect and/or to test the Goods to confirm their conformity to the Contract specifications at no extra cost to the Procuring agency. SCC and the Technical Specifications shall specify what inspections and tests the Procuring agency requires and where they are to be conducted. The Procuring agency shall notify the Supplier in writing, in a timely manner, of the identity of any representatives retained for these purposes.
- 8.2 The inspections and tests may be conducted on the premises of the Supplier or its subcontractor(s), at point of delivery, and/or at the Goods' final destination. If conducted on the premises of the Supplier or its subcontractor(s), all reasonable facilities and assistance, including access to drawings and production data, shall be furnished to the inspectors at no charge to the Procuring agency
- 8.3 Should any inspected or tested Goods fail to conform to the Specifications, the Procuring agency may reject the Goods, and the Supplier shall either replace the rejected Goods or make alterations necessary to meet specification requirements free of cost to the Procuring agency.
- 8.4 The Procuring agency's right to inspect, test and, where necessary, reject the Goods after the Goods' arrival in the Procuring agency's country shall in no way be limited or waived by reason of the Goods having previously been inspected, tested, and passed by the Procuring agency or its representative prior to the Goods' shipment from the country of origin.
- 8.5 Nothing in GCC Clause 8 shall in any way release the Supplier from any warranty or other obligations under this Contract.

#### 9. Packing

- 9.1 The Supplier shall provide such packing of the Goods as is required to prevent their damage or deterioration during transit to their final destination, as indicated in the Contract. The packing shall be sufficient to withstand, without limitation, rough handling during transit and exposure to extreme temperatures, salt and precipitation during transit, and open storage. Packing case size and weights shall take into consideration, where appropriate, the remoteness of the Goods' final destination and the absence of heavy handling facilities at all points in transit.
- 9.2 The packing, marking, and documentation within and outside the packages shall comply strictly with such special requirements as shall be expressly provided for in the Contract, including additional requirements, if any, specified in SCC, and in any subsequent instructions ordered by the Procuring agency.

#### 10. Delivery and Documents

- 10.1 Delivery of the Goods shall be made by the Supplier in accordance with the terms specified in the Schedule of Requirements. The details of shipping and/or other documents to be furnished by the Supplier are specified in SCC.
- 10.2 Documents to be submitted by the Supplier are specified in SCC.

#### 11. Insurance

11.1 The Goods supplied under the Contract shall be delivered duty paid (DDP) / CFR / CNF / C&F / CPT – Karachi under which risk is transferred to the buyer after having been delivered at consignees end or Karachi Port, hence insurance coverage is sellers responsibility.



#### 12. Transportation

12.1 The Supplier is required under the Contact to transport the Goods to a specified place of destination outside and within the Procuring agency's country, transport to such place of destination in the Procuring agency's country, including insurance and storage, as shall be specified in the Contract, shall be arranged by the Supplier, and related costs shall be included in the Contract Price.

#### 13. Incidental Services

- 13.1 The Supplier may be required to provide any or all of the following services, including additional services, if any, specified in SCC:
  - a. performance or supervision of on-site assembly and/or start-up of the supplied Goods:
  - b. furnishing of tools required for assembly and/or maintenance of the supplied Goods;
  - c. furnishing of a detailed operations and maintenance manual for each appropriate unit of the supplied Goods;
  - d. performance or supervision or maintenance and/or repair of the supplied Goods, for a period of time agreed by the parties, provided that this service shall not relieve the Supplier of any warranty obligations under this Contract; and
  - e. training of the Procuring agency's personnel, at the Supplier's plant and/or on-site, in assembly, start-up, operation, maintenance, and/or repair of the supplied Goods.
- 13.2 Prices charged by the Supplier for incidental services, if not included in the Contract Price for the Goods, shall be agreed upon in advance by the parties and shall not exceed the prevailing rates charged for other parties by the Supplier for similar services.

#### 14. Warranty

- 14.1 The Supplier warrants that the Goods supplied under the Contract are new, unused, of the most recent or current models, and that they incorporate all recent improvements in design and materials unless provided otherwise in the Contract. The Supplier further warrants that all Goods supplied under this Contract shall have no defect, arising from design, materials, or workmanship (except when the design and/or material is required by the Procuring agency's specifications) or from any act or omission of the Supplier, that may develop under normal use of the supplied Goods in the conditions prevailing in the country of final destination.
- 14.2 This warranty shall remain valid for twelve (12) months or according to the requirement of extended warranty period after the Goods, or any portion thereof as the case may be, have been delivered to and accepted at the final destination indicated in the Contract. In any case this period shall not exceed six (06) months beyond the warranty expiration period from the date of taking over of goods by the procuring agency, unless specified otherwise in SCC.
- 14.3 The Procuring agency shall promptly notify the Supplier in writing of any claims arising under this warranty.
- 14.4 Upon receipt of such notice, the Supplier shall, within the period specified in SCC and with all reasonable speed, repair or replace the defective Goods or parts thereof, without costs to the Procuring agency.
- 14.5 If the Supplier, having been notified, fails to remedy the defect(s) within the period specified in SCC, within a reasonable period, the Procuring agency may proceed to take such remedial action as may be necessary, at the Supplier's risk and expense and without prejudice to any other rights which the Procuring agency may have against the Supplier under the Contract.
- 14.6 The provisions of this Clause include all the expenses that the bidder may have to incur for delivery and installation of such replacement parts, material and equipment as are needed for satisfactory operation of the goods at the consignees end.
- 14.7 During the period of warranty, the bidder shall remedy, at his / her expense all defects in design, material and workmanship that may develop or are revealed under normal use of the

- goods upon receiving writing notice from the procuring agency; the notice shall indicate in what respect the goods are faulty.
- 14.8 The bidder shall provide warranty / guarantee for supply of reagents, kits and chemicals, consumables, films and ancillaries for at least 10 years (where applicable).
- 14.9 The bidder shall remain responsible for providing after sale services even after expiry of warranty / guarantee period and sign a Service Contract including parts or without parts with Procuring Agency for 05 years (minimum). Bidder shall separately quote the price of service contract (in terms of percentage) inclusive of parts and without parts, separately.
- 14.10 In case of consumable items, reagents, kits, chemicals, films etc. the contractor shall remain responsible for specificity, efficacy & sensitivity with maximum period of expiry as much allowed by manufacturer.
- 14.11 The Procuring Agency shall promptly notify the Bidder in writing of any claims arising out of this warranty.
- 14.12 The bidder shall be responsible to ensure the 95% uptime of the machinery / equipment during the warranty period.

#### 15. Payment

- 15.1 The method and conditions of payment to be made to the Supplier under this Contract shall be specified in SCC.
- 15.2 The Supplier's request(s) for payment shall be made to the Procuring agency in writing, accompanied by an invoice describing, as appropriate, the Goods delivered and Services performed, and by documents submitted pursuant to GCC Clause 10, and upon fulfillment of other obligations stipulated in the Contract.
- 15.3 Payments shall be made promptly by the Procuring agency, but in no case later than ninety (90) days after submission of an invoice or claim by the Supplier.
- 15.4 The currency of payment shall be in Pak. Rupees.

#### 16. Prices

16.1 Prices charged by the Supplier for Goods delivered and Services performed under the Contract shall not vary from the prices quoted by the Supplier in its bid, with the exception of any price adjustments authorized in SCC or in the Procuring agency's request for bid validity extension, as the case may be.

#### 17. Change Orders

- 17.1 The Procuring agency may at any time, by a written order given to the Supplier pursuant to GCC Clause 31, make changes within the general scope of the Contract in any one or more of the following:
  - a. drawings, designs, or specifications, where Goods to be furnished under the Contract are to be specifically manufactured for the Procuring agency;
  - b. the method of shipment or packing;
  - c. the place of delivery; and/or
  - d. the Services to be provided by the Supplier.
- 17.2 If any such change causes an increase or decrease in the cost of, or the time required for, the Supplier's performance of any provisions under the Contract, an equitable adjustment shall be made in the Contract Price or delivery schedule, or both, and the Contract shall accordingly be amended. Any claims by the Supplier for adjustment under this clause must be asserted within thirty (30) days from the date of the Supplier's receipt of the Procuring agency's change order.



#### 18. Contract Amendments

18.1 Subject to GCC Clause 18, no variation in or modification of the terms of the Contract shall be made except by written amendment signed by the parties.

#### 19. Assignment

19.1 The Supplier shall not assign, in whole or in part, its obligations to perform under this Contract, except with the Procuring agency's prior written consent.

#### 20. Subcontracts

20.1 The Supplier shall not be allowed to sublet and award subcontracts under this Contract.

#### 21. Delay in the Supplier's Performance

- 21.1 Delivery of the Goods and performance of Services shall be made by the Supplier in accordance with the time schedule prescribed by the Procuring agency in the Schedule of Requirements / Contract Award.
- 21.2 If at any time during performance of the Contract, the Supplier or its subcontractor(s) should encounter conditions impeding timely delivery of the Goods and performance of Services, the Supplier shall promptly notify the Procuring agency in writing of the fact of the delay, its likely duration and its cause(s). As soon as practicable after receipt of the Supplier's notice, the Procuring agency shall evaluate the situation and may at its discretion extend the Supplier's time for performance, with or without liquidated damages, in which case the extension shall be ratified by the parties by amendment of Contract.
- 21.3 Except as provided under GCC Clause 25, a delay by the Supplier in the performance of its delivery obligations shall render the Supplier liable to the imposition of liquidated damages pursuant to GCC Clause 23, unless an extension of time is agreed upon pursuant to GCC Clause 22.2 without the application of liquidated damages.

#### 22. Liquidated Damages

22.1 Subject to GCC Clause 25, if the Supplier fails to deliver any or all of the Goods or to perform the Services within the period(s) specified in the Contract, the Procuring agency shall, without prejudice to its other remedies under the Contract, deduct from the Contract Price, as liquidated damages, a sum equivalent to the percentage specified in SCC of the delivered price of the delayed Goods or unperformed Services for each week or part thereof of delay until actual delivery or performance, up to a maximum deduction of the percentage specified in SCC. Once the maximum is reached, the Procuring agency may consider termination of the Contract pursuant to GCC Clause 24.

#### 23. Termination for Default

- 23.1 The Procuring agency, without prejudice to any other remedy for breach of Contract, by written notice of default sent to the Supplier, may terminate this Contract in whole or in part:
  - a. if the Supplier fails to deliver any or all of the Goods within the period(s) specified in the Contract, or within any extension thereof granted by the Procuring agency pursuant to GCC Clause 22; or
  - b. if the Supplier fails to perform any other obligation(s) under the Contract.
  - c. if the Supplier, in the judgment of the Procuring agency has engaged in corrupt or fraudulent practices in competing for or in executing the Contract.

#### For the purpose of this clause:

"corrupt practice" means the offering, giving, receiving or soliciting of any thing of value to influence the action of a public official in the procurement process or in contract execution.

"fraudulent practice" means a misrepresentation of facts in order to influence a procurement process or the execution of a contract to the detriment of the Borrower, and includes collusive practice among Bidders (prior to or after bid submission) designed to establish bid prices at artificial non-competitive levels and to deprive the Borrower of the benefits of free and open competition.

23.2 In the event the Procuring agency terminates the Contract in whole or in part, pursuant to GCC Clause 24.1, the Procuring agency may procure, upon such terms and in such manner as it deems appropriate, Goods or Services similar to those undelivered, and the Supplier shall be liable to the Procuring agency for any excess costs for such similar Goods or Services. However, the Supplier shall continue performance of the Contract to the extent not terminated.

#### 24. Force Majeure

- 24.1 Notwithstanding the provisions of GCC Clauses 22, 23, and 24, the Supplier shall not be liable for forfeiture of its performance security, liquidated damages, or termination for default if and to the extent that its delay in performance or other failure to perform its obligations under the Contract is the result of an event of Force Majeure.
- 24.2 For purposes of this clause, "Force Majeure" means an event beyond the control of the Supplier and not involving the Supplier's fault or negligence and not foreseeable. Such events may include, but are not restricted to, acts of the Procuring agency in its sovereign capacity, wars or revolutions, fires, floods, epidemics, quarantine restrictions, and freight embargoes.
- 24.3 If a Force Majeure situation arises, the Supplier shall promptly notify the Procuring agency in writing of such condition and the cause thereof. Unless otherwise directed by the Procuring agency in writing, the Supplier shall continue to perform its obligations under the Contract as far as is reasonably practical, and shall seek all reasonable alternative means for performance not prevented by the Force Majeure event.

#### 25. Termination for Insolvency

25.1 The Procuring agency may at any time terminate the Contract by giving written notice to the Supplier if the Supplier becomes bankrupt or otherwise insolvent. In this event, termination will be without compensation to the Supplier, provided that such termination will not prejudice or affect any right of action or remedy which has accrued or will accrue thereafter to the Procuring agency.

#### 26. Termination for Convenience

- 26.1 The Procuring agency, by written notice sent to the Supplier, may terminate the Contract, in whole or in part, at any time for its convenience. The notice of termination shall specify that termination is for the Procuring agency's convenience, the extent to which performance of the Supplier under the Contract is terminated, and the date upon which such termination becomes effective.
- 26.2 The Goods that are complete and ready for shipment within thirty (30) days after the Supplier's receipt of notice of termination shall be accepted by the Procuring agency at the Contract terms and prices. For the remaining Goods, the Procuring agency may elect:
  - a. to have any portion completed and delivered at the Contract terms and prices; and/or
  - to cancel the remainder and pay to the Supplier an agreed amount for partially completed Goods and Services and for materials and parts previously procured by the Supplier.

#### 27. Resolution of disputes

- 27.1 The Procuring agency and the Supplier shall make every effort to resolve amicably by direct informal negotiation any disagreement or dispute arising between them under or in connection with the Contract.
- 27.2 If, after thirty (30) days from the commencement of such informal negotiations, the Procuring agency and the Supplier have been unable to resolve amicably a Contract dispute, either party may require that the dispute be referred for resolution to the formal mechanisms specified in SCC. These mechanisms may include, but are not restricted to, conciliation mediated by a third party, adjudication in an agreed manner and/or arbitration.

#### 28. Governing Language

28.1 The Contract shall be written in the language specified in SCC. Subject to GCC Clause 30, the version of the Contract written in the specified language shall govern its interpretation. All correspondence and other documents pertaining to the Contract which are exchanged by the parties shall be written in the same language.

#### 29. Applicable Law

29.1 The Contract shall be interpreted in accordance with the laws of the Procuring agency's country (Islamic Republic of Pakistan), unless otherwise specified in SCC.

#### 30. Notices

- 30.1 Any notice given by one party to the other pursuant to this Contract shall be sent to the other party in writing or by cable, telex, or facsimile and confirmed in writing to the other party's address specified in SCC.
- 30.2 A notice shall be effective when delivered or on the notice's effective date, whichever is later.

#### 31. Taxes and Duties

31.1 Supplier shall be entirely responsible for all taxes, duties, license fees, etc. (excluding GST), incurred until delivery of the contracted Goods to the Procuring agency in case of Delivered Duty Paid (DDP) basis.



# Part Two (Procurement Specific Provisions)

- Invitation for Bids (IFB)
- Bid Data Sheet (BDS)
- Special Conditions of Contract (SCC)
- Schedule of Requirements
- Technical Specifications
- Sample Form
- Eligibility



# Part Two - Section I Invitation for Bids



## Invitation for Bids (IFB) / Notice Inviting Tender (NIT) DUHS/DP/2025/329/333 Dated 10 November 2025

Dow University of Health Sciences, Karachi (DUHS) invites e-bids through E-Pak Acquisition and Disposal System (EPADS) from the manufacturers or their authorized agents / distributors. Bidders must be register and appear on the 'List of Active Taxpayers' of FBR/SRB for income tax and GST/SST (whichever is applicable) for the supply of following categories/items/goods under ADP Scheme No. 805/2025-26, "Establishment of Trauma Center, BSL-3 Lab and Provision of Support Services at Institute of Chest Diseases, Ojha Campus of DOW University of Health Sciences, Karachi". Bidding Documents containing detailed Terms and Conditions can be viewed/downloaded from <a href="https://portalsindh.eprocure.gov.pk/#/">https://portalsindh.eprocure.gov.pk/#/</a> OR https://duhs.edu.pk.

Electronic bids should be submitted through EPADS only. Manual bids will not be received/entertained. Interested bidders are required to register themselves on the EPAD System at the link https://sindh.eprocure.gov.pk/#/supplier/registration for submission of electronic bids.

The bids, prepared according to the instructions provided in the bidding documents, must be submitted on EPADS by <u>28 November 2025 at 10:00 Hrs.</u> The original instrument of the **tender fee of Rs. 2,000/**-(Non-refundable) and **bid security** not less than **two percent (2%) of the estimated value of the tender OR item** as per following details must be reach the procuring agency (Procurement Directorate at Central Warehouse, Dow University of Health Sciences (Ojha Campus), SUPARCO Road, off Main University Road, Gulzar-e-Hijri, Scheme No. 33, Karachi) before the deadline for submission of e-bids, which will be opened on the same day at **10:30 Hrs.**:

S#	Category	Tender Reference Number	Amount of Bid Security
1.	System  CFR/C&F or DDP Basis (Excluding GST)  Single Stage – Two Envelope Procedure under Rule 46(2) of SPP Rules 2010	DUHS/DP/2025/329	Pak Rs. 2,515,200/- (2% of Estimated Cost)
2.	Procurement of the Equipment & Instruments  CFR/C&F or DDP Basis (Excluding GST)  Single Stage – Two Envelope Procedure under Rule 46(2) of SPP Rules 2010	DUHS/DP/2025/330	Amount indicated against each item in Section V of Bidding Documents (2% of Estimated Cost)
3.	Procurement of the Hospital Furniture & Fixtures DDP Basis (Excluding GST) Single Stage – One Envelope Procedure under Rule 46(1) of SPP Rules 2010	DUHS/DP/2025/331	Pak Rs. 304,560/- (2% of Estimated Cost)
4.	Procurement of the Surgical Instruments DDP Basis (Excluding GST) Single Stage – One Envelope Procedure under Rule 46(1) of SPP Rules 2010	DUHS/DP/2025/332	Pak Rs. 116,580/- (2% of Estimated Cost)
5.	Procurement of the Office Furniture & Fixtures DDP Basis (Excluding GST) Single Stage – One Envelope Procedure under Rule 46(1) of SPP Rules 2010	DUHS/DP/2025/333	Pak Rs. 103,440/- (2% of Estimated Cost)

#### Note:

- a. For any query regarding e-bidding, please contact the Director Procurement Office at Tel: 021-38771111 (Ext. 4433)
- b. In case Govt. announces any public holiday or any unfavorable circumstances the tender/bids will be submitted and opened on the next working day, at the same venue and time.
- c. The purchaser reserves the right to reject any/all bids under the relevant provisions of SPP Rules 2010 (Amended).
- d. In case of any difficulty, prospective bidders may contact the EPADS Helpline 051-111-137-237 during working days/hours.

**Director Procurement Dow University of Health Sciences, Karachi** 



# Part Two - Section II Bid Data Sheet



### **Bid Data Sheet**

The following specific data for the goods to be procured shall complement, supplement, or amend the provisions in the Instructions to Bidders (ITB) Part One. Whenever there is a conflict, the provisions herein shall prevail over those in ITB.

	Introduction
ITB 1.1	Name of Procuring Agency: Dow University of Health Sciences, Karachi (DUHS)
ITB 1.1	Project / Scheme / Tender Allocation Amount: PKR. 15.228 million
ITB 1.1	Project / Scheme Allocation Number: ADP 2025-26 Scheme No.: 805
ITB 1.1	Name of Project/Scheme: Establishment of Trauma Center, BSL-3 Lab and Provision of Support Services at Institute of Chest Diseases, Ojha Campus of Dow University of Health Sciences, Karachi.
ITB 1.1	Name of Contract: Procurement of the Hospital Furniture & Fixtures under ADP Scheme # 805/2025-26 "Establishment of Trauma Center, BSL-3 Lab and Provision of Support Services at OICD-DUHS"
ITB 2.4	Bids submitted under Joint Venture (JV) / Consortium will not be considered and rejected as ineligible bidder.
ITB 4.1	Name of Procuring agency: Dow University of Health Sciences, Karachi (DUHS)
ITB 6.1	Postal Address: Procurement Directorate at Central Warehouse, Dow University of Health Sciences (Ojha Campus), SUPARCO Road, off Main University Road, Gulzare-Hijri, Scheme No. 33, Karachi. Phone No. + 92-21-99261497, Ext: 4433. Email: director.procurement@duhs.edu.pk
ITB 8.1	Language of the bid shall be ENGLISH.

	Bid Price and Currency
ITB 11.2	<ul> <li>The price quoted shall be in Pakistani Rupee on delivered duty paid (DDP) Price (excluding GST).</li> <li>Price of incidental services, if any, must be included in price of goods.</li> </ul>
ITB 11.4	The price shall be fixed during the contract period with the exception of price adjustment authorized in SCC.
ITB 12.1	The price quoted shall be in Pak Rupees on delivered duty paid (DDP) basis (Excluding GST).

	Preparation and Submission of Bids
ITB 13.3 (d)	Mandatory Qualification requirements
	Please review the following list of requirements/ documents to be enclosed
	with the Technical Proposal.
	These are the "MANDATORY REQUIREMENTS/DOCUMENTS", non-
	submission of any one of the mandatory documents / non-compliance to the
	any single mandatory provision will lead to disqualification / rejection of the
	bid.

S#	DOCUMENT OF PARTICIPATING FIRM	YES / NO
1.	PRODUCT EVALUATION	
1.1	Compliance to the Technical Specifications / Approval of the Samples.	
1.2	Technical Bid / Proposal duly signed and stamped (preferably on Bidder's letterhead).	
1.3	Catalogue / Brochures / Technical Data Sheet / Sketches / Drawings duly highlighting the complete technical specifications of the offered goods along with the dimensions and details of material.	
2.	BIDDER EVALUATION	
2.1	Tender Purchase Receipt / Pay order of Tender Fee.	
2.2	Bid Security of required amount and in prescribed shape.  (Must be submitted before the opening of the bids)	
2.3	Bidding Documents (Duly filled, Signed & Stamped by Bidder)	
2.4	Undertaking on stamp paper of Rs. 100/- to the effect that:  i. The bidder is neither blacklisted nor suspended by any National / International, including Provincial and Federal Government.  ii. Any director or owner of the bidding company is not awarded any punishment from any Court of Law.  iii. Bidder has submitted the correct and complete information along with the bid/offer. If any document / information is found forged / engineered / fake / bogus at any stage, the bidder may be declared as Blacklisted in accordance with law and the performance guarantee and payment, if any may be forfeited.  (Note: The offers from the bidder whose name have been removed from the blacklist will be accepted.)	
2.5	Compliance to bid validity period.	
2.6	Compliance to Delivery Schedule.	
2.7	Compliance to Payment Terms & Conditions.	
2.8	Income Tax & GST/SST Registration (whichever is applicable) with Active Taxpayer Status on FBR/SRB website.	
2.9	Bid Form on Bidder's Letterhead duly signed and stamped.	
2.10	Price Schedule(s) on Bidder's Letterhead duly signed and stamped.	
2.11	Past Performance & Experience: The bidder must have successfully completed minimum of 3 contracts, each valued at Rs. 10 million or more, for the supply of hospital furniture and fixtures during the last 3 years.  OR The bidder must have successfully completed minimum of 6 contracts, each valued at Rs. 5 million or more, for the supply of hospital furniture and fixtures during the last 3 years.  Verifiable documentary evidence in support of the same must be furnished with the bid.	
2.12	<b>Bidder's Financial Strength:</b> Average Annual Turnover of the last three (03) financial years must not be less than <b>PRs. 30 million</b> (Income Tax Returns for the last 3 years must be attached as supporting documents for the verification of the turnover).	
2.13	Company Profile	105-112-112

ITB 15.1	Amount of bid security shall not be less than PRs. 304,560/- (2% of the estimated allocated amount/budget) in the form of a Call Deposit, Bank Draft or a Bank Guarantee issued by a scheduled bank of Pakistan, in favour of the Dow University of Health Sciences, Karachi.
ITB 16.1	Bid validity period shall be <u>90 days</u>
ITB 18.2 (a)	a. Procurement Directorate at Central Warehouse, Dow University of Health Sciences (Ojha Campus), SUPARCO Road, off Main University Road, Gulzare-Hijri, Scheme No. 33, Karachi.
	b. Electronic Bids should be submitted through E-Pak Acquisition and Disposable System (EPADS).
ITB 18.2 (b)	Name of Project / Scheme / Institute / Department: Establishment of Trauma Center, BSL-3 Lab and Provision of Support Services at Institute of Chest Diseases, Ojha Campus of Dow University of Health Sciences, Karachi.
	IFB/NIT Title: Procurement of the Hospital Furniture & Fixtures (NIT Ref. No: DUSH/DP/2025/331)
	NIT. No: DUHS/DP/2025/329/333 Dated 10 November 2025
ITB 19.1	Electronic Bids should be submitted through E-Pak Acquisition and Disposable System (EPADS)
	Deadline for bid submission: Date: 28 November 2025 Time: upto 10:00 Hrs.
ITB 21.3	All supporting documents pertaining to the Mandatory Bidder's Qualification and Evaluation Criteria, as required under these Bidding Documents, must be uploaded exclusively on the SPPRAL (EPADS) portal. No clarification or document submitted in any other form or medium will be accepted or entertained after the opening of bids on EPADS.
ITB 22.1	Date, Time and Place of Bid Opening Date: 28 November 2025 Time: 10:30 Hrs. Place: Procurement Directorate at Central Warehouse, Dow University of Health Sciences (Ojha Campus), SUPARCO Road, off Main University Road,
ITB 24.5	Gulzar-e-Hijri, Scheme No. 33, Karachi.  Bidders shall provide firm, clear, and unconditional responses in their bids. The use of vague, ambiguous, or conditional expressions such as "subject to," "may be," "between this and that," or any similar terminology is strictly prohibited and may result in the bid being declared non-responsive in accordance with the applicable procurement rules.

	Bid Evaluation
ITB 25.4	Criteria for bid evaluation.

#### i. <u>Technical Bids / Proposals Evaluation:</u>

- (a) The bids not responsive to the MANDATORY QUALIFICATION CRITERIA provided at ITB Clause 13.3(d) shall not be eligible for further Technical Evaluation.
- (b) Joint Venture / Consortium Bids, Vague Bids, Ambiguous Bids, Conditional Bids, Telegraphic Bids, Bids not accompanied by Bid Security of required amount and form, bids received after specific date and time and bids of Blacklisted firms shall be treated

- as rejected / non-responsive (The offers from the bidder whose name have been removed from the blacklist will be accepted).
- (c) Alternative bids shall not be allowed.
- (d) The bids shall be evaluated and compared on a complete Group / Lot / Package basis only, as specified in Section V Technical Specifications. Partial or incomplete bids covering limited item(s) within a Group / Lot / Package shall not be considered and shall be rejected as non-responsive
- (e) DUHS may reject the bid/or part of it if previous experience in terms of supplies and service is not satisfactory.

#### ii. Financial Bids / Proposal Evaluation:

- a. Financial Bids/Proposals of only technically qualified bidders meeting the eligibility criteria shall be considered for the evaluation.
- b. Bids not accompanied by the Bid Security of the required amount and form shall be rejected.
- c. Procuring Agency shall not be responsible for any erroneous calculation of taxes and all differences arising out shall be fully borne by the Successful Bidder.
- d. The bidder whose offered rate is found lowest amongst other technically qualified bidders shall be considered for acceptance of the offer provided that it fulfils the prescribed terms and conditions of the tender.

	Contract Award
ITB 29.1	The Procuring Agency reserves the right to drop any item and/or to increase or decrease the quantity of goods, up to <b>fifteen percent</b> (±15%) of the originally specified quantity, without any change in unit price or other terms and conditions of the contract.
ITM 32.1	Successful Bidder and the Procuring Agency will sign the Contract Agreement on the stamp paper with stamp duties as per the article 22-A (Contract) of the schedule of Stamp Act 1899. The expenditure involved on the said contract agreement will be borne by the bidder.



## Part Two - Section III Special Conditions of Contract



## **Special Conditions of Contract**

The following Special Conditions of Contract shall supplement the General Conditions of Contract. Whenever there is a conflict, the provisions herein shall prevail over those in the General Conditions of Contract. The corresponding clause number of the GCC is indicated in parentheses.

#### 1. Definitions (GCC Clause 1)

GCC 1.1 (g)—The Procuring agency is: Dow University of Health Sciences, Karachi.

GCC 1.1 (h)—The Procuring agency's country is: Islamic Republic of Pakistan

GCC 1.1 (i)—The Supplier is:

[Name and Address of the Bidder]

#### 2. Country of Origin (GCC Clause 3)

All countries and territories as indicated in Part Two Section VI of the bidding documents, "Eligibility for the Provisions of Goods, Works, and Services in Government-Financed Procurement".

#### 3. Technical Specifications (GCC Clause 4)

The technical specifications of the goods provided in this bidding document are only for widest possible competition and not for favor any single contractor or supplier nor put others at a disadvantage. However, the brand name, catalogue No. / Name etc., if any, has only been used for the reference purpose. Equipment offered <u>"ATLEAST EQUIVALENT OR HAVING BETTER TECHNICAL SPECIFICATIONS"</u> shall also be considered.

#### 4. Performance Security (GCC Clause 7)

GCC 7.1—The amount of performance security, as a percentage of the Contract Price, shall be Five (5%) percent of the Contract Price in favor of Dow University of Health Sciences, Karachi.

#### 5. Packing (GCC Clause 9)

GCC 9.2—The following SCC shall supplement GCC Clause 9.2:

The packing, marking and documentation within and outside the packages shall be as per manufacturer standards meeting the safety requirements of the goods.

#### 6. Delivery and Documents (GCC Clause 10)

GCC 10.2—The Bidder shall provide the following documents at the time of delivery of goods to the Store / Warehouse of the Dow University of Health Sciences, Karachi for verification duly completed in all respects:

- i. Original copies of Delivery Note (Delivery Challan) (in duplicate) showing item's description, make, model, quantity as well as Lot Number, Batch Number, Registration Number, manufacturing and expiry dates (if applicable).
- ii. Original copies of the Bidder's invoices (in duplicate) showing warranty, item's description, make, model as well as Lot Number, Batch Number, Registration Number, manufacturing and expiry dates (if applicable) per unit cost, and total amount.
- iii. Original copies of the Sales Tax Invoices (where applicable) in duplicate showing item's description, quantity, per unit cost without Sales Tax, amount of Sales Tax and total amount with Sales Tax.
- iv. Manufacturer's or Bidder's warranty certificate.
- v. Inspection certificate issued by the nominated inspection committee / Bidder's factory inspection report.

- vi. Certificate of origin.
- vii. Operator manual, technical and service manual, software, spare parts catalogue and price list must be provided with the equipment (**If applicable**).

#### 7. Insurance (GCC Clause 11)

GCC 11.1—The Goods supplied under the Contract shall be delivered duty paid (DDP) under which risk is transferred to the buyer after having been delivered, hence insurance coverage is sellers' responsibility. Since the Insurance is seller's responsibility they may arrange appropriate coverage.

#### 8. Warranty (GCC Clause 14)

GCC 14.2—In partial modification of the provisions, the warranty period shall be twelve (12) months or standard warranty period of the manufacturer or as per the extended warranty period from the date of acceptance of the Goods. The Supplier shall, in addition, comply with the performance and/or consumption guarantees specified under the Contract. During warranty/contract period, preventative maintenance, Installation qualification, operational qualification, QA/QC must be done as per manufactures checklist and guideline by trained personal. Response time during warranty and contract period would be 4 hours of less, and resolution time should not increase 7 days for any instance.

#### 9. Payment (GCC Clause 15)

GCC 15.1—The method and conditions of payment to be made to the Supplier under this Contract shall be as follows:

- (a) Payment shall be made in Pak Rupees.
- (b) 100% of the Contract Price on complete delivery of store within ninety (90) days on submission of claim supported by acceptance certificate from procuring agency declaring Goods have been delivered and that all contracted services have been performed.
- (c) Part payment on part supply may be allowed

#### 10. Prices (GCC Clause 16)

GCC 16.1— No price adjustment shall be permissible except in the event of changes in statutory taxes, duties, or exemptions under the applicable laws.

#### 11. Liquidated Damages (GCC Clause 22)

GCC 22.1—In case deliveries are not completed within the time frame specified in the schedule of requirements / contract award, a Show Cause Notice will be served on the Bidder which will be following by cancellation of the Contract to the extent of non-delivered portion of installments. No supplies will be accepted and the amount of Performance Guarantee / Security to the extent of non-delivered portion of supplies of relevant installments will be forfeited. If the firm fails to supply the whole installments, maintenance the entire amount of Performance Guarantee/Security will be forfeited and the firm will be blacklisted at least for two years for future participation in bids:

The liquidated damage shall be 0.5 % per week or part thereof. The maximum amount of liquidated damages shall be 10% of the amount of contract. Once the cumulative amount of liquidated damages reaches ten percent (10%) of the amount of the contract, the Procuring Agency shall rescind the contract, without prejudice to other courses of action and remedies open to it.

#### 12. Resolution of Disputes (GCC Clause 27)

GCC 27.1—The dispute resolution mechanism to be applied pursuant to GCC Clause 28.2 shall be as follows:

In the case of a dispute between the Procuring agency and the Supplier, the dispute shall be referred to the dispute resolution mechanism as defined in rule 31, 32 and 34 of the SPP Rules, 2010 (Amended).

#### 13. Governing Language (GCC Clause 28)

GCC 28.1—The Governing Language shall be ENGLISH

#### 14. Applicable Law (GCC Clause 29)

GCC 29.1-The Contract shall be interpreted in accordance with the laws of Islamic Republic of Pakistan which includes the following legislation:

The Employment of Children (ECA) Act 1991

The Bonded Labour System (Abolition) Act of 1992

The Factories Act 1934

#### 15. Notices (GCC Clause 30)

GCC 30.1—Procuring agency's address for notice purposes:

Procurement Directorate at Central Warehouse, Dow University of Health Sciences (Ojha Campus), SUPARCO Road, off Main University Road, Gulzar-e-Hijri, Scheme No. 33, Karachi. Phone No. + 92-21-99261497

Email: director.procurement@duhs.edu.pk

#### Supplier's address for notice purposes:

Name of Bidder:
Name of Contact Person & Designation:
Phone No.
Fax No
Mobile Phone No.
Email Address



# Part Two - Section IV Schedule of Requirements



# Schedule of Requirements

S#	Description of Goods	Qty.	Required Delivery Schedule	Location
01.	As per the details of ite attached in Section V Technical Specification	_	Delivery & Installation within 60 Days or earlier from the date of Contact Award.	Ojha Campus of Dow University of Health Sciences, Karachi.



# Part Two - Section V Technical Specifications



## **Technical Specifications**

# Group / Lot / Package-A

Item No.	Name of Goods, Technical Description, Specifications and Standards	Required Quantity
1.	Poles Stretcher	04 Units

- Material: Lightweight aluminium alloy / hardwood poles, corrosion-resistant, non-slip grips.
- **Fabric:** Strong, waterproof, washable canvas/nylon; flame-retardant, fungus-resistant; detachable and replaceable.
- Load Capacity: Minimum 120-150 kg.
- Weight: Not more than 8–10 kg.
- **Dimensions:** Length 1850 mm  $\pm$  50, Width 500 mm  $\pm$  25; foldable length  $\leq$  1100 mm (if foldable).
- Safety: At least 2 securing straps with quick-release buckles; no sharp edges; rounded corners.

Item	Name of Goods, Technical Description, Specifications and Standards	Required
No.		Quantity
2.	Stand IV Anistatic Castors S/S	20 Units

Movable height adjustable infusion stand.

Heavy carriage mounted on 5 swivel castors.

Lower-end support column is deep and securely fixed into the carriage-base.

Solid manual lever at the upper-end of the support column, allows setting telescopic upper part at the required height

A brake prevents exceeding the maximum height setting.

Double hook fixed at the top of telescopic rod.

High resistance to corrosion

Support and telescopic column: Austenitic stainless steel 18/10

Carriage-base: single molded unit, polypropylene. Caster frame/bracket: polypropylene or nylon.

Caster wheel: twin-wheel, solid-type, non-hooded (for easy maintenance), polypropylene or nylon.

Wheel bearing: polypropylene or nylon.

Castor fixation into carriage base: stainless steel.

Height, adjustable: 140-200 cm. Carriage-base, diameter: 54-66cm.

Swivel castor twin-wheel: 3.6-4.4 x 4-5.5cm (w x diameter)

Item	Name of Goods, Technical Description, Specifications and Standards	Required
No.		Quantity
3.	Trolley Cylinder	10 Units

Frame of the cylinder trolley is made with Mild Steel (M.S.) tubular steel. mounted on two 10cm wheels

Finish in epoxy powder coated Height: 106 cm (approx.)



Item No.	Name of Goods, Technical Description, Specifications and Standards	Required Quantity
4.	Scales Baby Digital / Electronic	01 Unit

Should have 5 gm accuracy

Should have a minimum measuring capacity 25 gms.

Should have easy to read LED display

Should measure a maximum weight of 20kgs.

Should have zero calibration.

Should hold the measured value irrespective of the baby movements.

Should have electronic damping facility for eliminating the reading fluctuations caused by moving baby.

Weighing pan should be suitable for weighing new born babies and the construction should not allow the baby to slip from the tray.

The Tray should be made of fiber glass/acrylic.

Should have a pan size of at least 50cms length, 20cms width and 8cms height.

The pan should have facility to measure the length of baby.

Should operate on input supply 200 to 230 Vac, 50 Hz

Item No.	Name of Goods, Technical Description, Specifications and Standards	Required Quantity
5.	Scales Patient W/ Height Measurement	04 Units

Capacity: 180 kg Accuracy: 100 g

Platter Size: 350 mm x 300 mm (Tolerance +/- 10%)

The scale should be made up of heavy duty. Cast iron structure Platform with powder coated frames.

The display stand height shall be 80cm (Tolerance +/- 10%) from the platform.

Item	Name of Goods, Technical Description, Specifications and Standards	Required
No.		Quantity
6.	Stand for Table Accessories	01 Unit

SS to hold all accessories of OT Table – Best Quality

Item No.	Name of Goods, Technical Description, Specifications and Standards	Required Ouantity
7.	Stand Bowl Double Horizontal	10 Units

- **Structure:** Stainless steel stand with two horizontal mounted bowls.
- Material: High-grade, rust-proof stainless steel (minimum SS 304).
- **Bowls:** Two (02) detachable bowls, seamless finish, easy to clean and disinfect.
- Capacity: Each bowl approx. 8–10 liters.
- **Stand Height:** Approx. **800–900 mm** (±25 mm).
- **Mobility:** Mounted on four (04) antistatic swivel castors.
- Frame: Tubular steel, powder-coated or stainless steel, with smooth welds and rounded edges.
- Stability: Wide base for balance; tip-resistant.
- **Compliance:** Conforms to hospital infection-control and safety standards.



Item No.	Name of Goods, Technical Description, Specifications and Standards	Required Quantity
8.	Cabinet Instrument	13 Units

Instruments storage cabinet, double door

Mounted on 4 sturdy supports, all finished with height adjustable feet

Recessed safety glass in the doors allows for viewing of cabinet content

Safety glass is supported by door frame on both sides, leaving no glass edges exposed

Inside reinforced fixtures facilitate height adjustment of the 4 shelves

Doors are triple hinged, closed with handle and lockable with key

Two-point lock, slides in frame at the top and base

Key is unique for each single cabinet, key-bow folds away from key-blade avoiding breakage when inside lock

Clearance underneath the cabinet allows for easy cleaning

High resistance to corrosion (tropical environment)

Adjustable feet: rubber or nylon

Frame, side panels, base, top and shelves: epoxy coated plate steel Doors: hardened safety glass, grounded edges, with key-lock.

Cabinet, overall: 72-88x36-44x170-210cm (1 x w x h)

Clearance underneath: 9-11cm Safety glass: 3.6-4.4mm (thickness)

Front glass area: 65-75%

Frame, drawer, door and panels: 1-1.4mm (thickness)

Door, opening angle: 180 degree

Carrying capacity, each shelf: 22.5-27.5kg

Item No.	Name of Goods, Technical Description, Specifications and Standards	Required Quantity
9.	Anesthesia Trolley (2 Shelves, 1 Drawer)	06 Units

- Material: High-grade stainless steel (minimum SS 304), rust-proof and easy to disinfect.
- **Design:** Two (02) shelves with raised edges to prevent spillage; one (01) lockable drawer for storage.
- **Dimensions:** Approx. 900–1000 mm height, 600–750 mm length, 450–500 mm width (±25 mm).
- **Mobility:** Four (04) smooth swivel castors (≥100 mm), two with brakes.
- Handles: Side push handle for easy movement.
- Frame: Welded tubular construction, rounded corners for safety.
- Load Capacity: Each shelf capable of holding  $\geq 30 \text{ kg}$ .
- Finish: Smooth, polished, corrosion-resistant surface.

Item	Name of Goods, Technical Description, Specifications and Standards	Required
No.		Quantity
10.	Infusor Pressure	20 Units

- Type: Reusable pressure infuser bag with transparent IV fluid pouch compartment.
- Capacity: Suitable for IV fluid bags up to 500 ml.
- Material: Durable, medical-grade PVC or nylon with latex-free bladder.
- **Gauge:** Integrated, easy-to-read pressure gauge (0–300 mmHg).
- **Inflation:** Hand bulb with quick-release valve for rapid inflation/deflation.
- Safety: Over-pressure protection to avoid damage to IV fluid bags.
- Cleaning: Washable, resistant to disinfectants.



Item No.	Name of Goods, Technical Description, Specifications and Standards	Required Quantity
11.	Apron Lead Double Sided	16 Units

- Type: Double-sided protective lead apron for radiation shielding.
- Lead Equivalence: 0.35 mm Pb (front and back).
- Length: Approx. 85 cm ( $\pm$  2 cm).
- **Material:** Multi-layered radiation protective material, lead-based or lead-free composite, with durable outer covering (tear-resistant, waterproof, easy to clean).
- **Design:** Full frontal and back protection; adjustable shoulder and waist straps for comfort.
- Weight Distribution: Evenly balanced to reduce operator fatigue during extended use.
- Safety Standard: Conforms to IEC / CE / ISO 13485 radiation protection requirements.

Item	Name of Goods, Technical Description, Specifications and Standards	Required
No.		Quantity
12.	Shield Gonad (Adult Male)	01 Unit

- Type: Protective gonad shield for adult male patients.
- Lead Equivalence: 1.0 mm Pb.
- **Design:** Anatomically shaped for male gonads; adjustable straps/fasteners for secure fit.
- **Material:** Multi-layered radiation protective material with soft, patient-friendly inner lining; durable, wipe-clean outer cover.
- Size: Standard adult size, adequate coverage of gonadal region.
- Safety Standards: Conforms to IEC / CE / ISO 13485 radiation protection requirements.

Item No.	Name of Goods, Technical Description, Specifications and Standards	Required Quantity
13.	Shield Gonad (Boy)	01 Unit

- Type: Protective gonad shield for male pediatric patients.
- Lead Equivalence: 1.0 mm Pb.
- **Design:** Anatomically contoured for boys; adjustable straps/fasteners for secure and comfortable fit
- **Material:** Multi-layered radiation protective material with soft inner lining; durable, wipe-clean outer cover.
- Size: Pediatric size, ensuring adequate coverage of gonadal region.
- Safety Standards: Conforms to IEC / CE / ISO 13485 radiation protection requirements.

Item	Name of Goods, Technical Description, Specifications and Standards	Required
No.		Quantity
14.	Shield Ovarian	01 Set

- Type: Protective ovarian shields, set of three (03) different sizes.
- Lead Equivalence: 1.0 mm Pb.
- Sizes: Small, Medium, Large to cover various patient anatomies.
- **Design:** Contoured shape to cover ovaries effectively; adjustable securing straps/fasteners.
- **Material:** Multi-layered radiation protective material with soft, patient-friendly inner lining and durable, wipe-clean outer cover.
- Safety Standards: Conforms to IEC / CE / ISO 13485 radiation protection requirements.



item No.	Name of Goods, Technical Description, Specifications and Standards	Required Quantity
15.	Illuminator X-Ray Viewer – Double Dimming	10 Units

- Type: Double film viewing illuminator with dimming control.
- Viewing Area: Suitable for standard X-ray films (approx.  $2 \times 14'' \times 17''$ ).
- **Light Source:** High-intensity LED/tube light, uniform brightness without flicker.
- **Dimming:** Step-less/continuous dimming control for brightness adjustment.
- Luminance:  $\geq 4000 \text{ cd/m}^2$ , with uniform illumination across screen.
- Frame: Slim, powder-coated/stainless steel body with acrylic viewing screen.
- Switching: Independent on/off and dimming control for each panel.
- **Mounting:** Wall-mounted or desktop type.
- **Power Supply:** 220–240 V, 50 Hz.
- Safety: Low heat emission, energy efficient, shock-proof design.

Item No.	Name of Goods, Technical Description, Specifications and Standards	Required Ouantity
16.	Cupboard Metal – Double Door	4 Units

- Material: High-quality CRCA sheet steel, minimum thickness 20–22 gauge.
- Finish: Epoxy powder-coated, corrosion and scratch resistant.
- **Doors:** Two (02) hinged metal doors with secure locking system (cam lock or equivalent).
- Shelves: Minimum 4 adjustable shelves, load capacity  $\geq 40$  kg each.
- Dimensions: Approx. 1800 mm (H)  $\times$  900 mm (W)  $\times$  450 mm (D) ( $\pm$ 25 mm).
- Handles: Recessed/flush handles for safety and durability.
- Base: Reinforced bottom for stability.
- Color: Off White / Cream

Item No.	Name of Goods, Technical Description, Specifications and Standards	Required Quantity
17.	Rack Mobile	10 Units

- Height: Approx. 1.65 m (±25 mm).
- Frame: Heavy-duty tubular steel frame (minimum 1.2–1.5 mm thickness), welded joints, powder-coated for durability and corrosion resistance.
- Shelving: Multiple tiers designed to hold standard plastic storage boxes/trays.
- Mobility: Four (04) smooth swivel castors (≥100 mm), at least two with brakes.
- Capacity: Each tier capable of holding  $\ge 20-25$  kg load.
- Finish: Smooth, easy to clean, disinfectant-resistant surface.
- **Edges:** Rounded for safety.

Item No.	Name of Goods, Technical Description, Specifications and Standards	Required Quantity
18.	Stool Powder Coated (C-Curve Support)	55 Units

Movable height adjustable stool, with pre-assembled gas spring

Heavy carriage mounted on 5 swivel castors

Height adjusting lever is conveniently placed under seat

Seat fit with thick upholstery

A brake prevents exceeding the maximum height setting

Upholstery: high-density polyurethane foam, density 2.7-3.3kg/m3

Cover: plastic, flexible highly tear resistant, anti-static, flame retardant, disinfectant- and liquid proof, washable

Seat diameter: 31-39cm Upholstery: 3.5-4.5cm (h)

Carriage-base, diameter: 54-66cm

Support column, with pre-assembled gas spring: 2-6 cm (outside, across)

Telescopic upper part: 1.8-2.2cm (outside, across)

Swivel castor twin-wheel: 3.5-4.5x4.5-5.5cm (w x diameter)

Carrying capacity: 135-165kg.

Item No.	Name of Goods, Technical Description, Specifications and Standards	Required Quantity
19.	Kick Step	190 Units

- Capacity: Supports up to 150 kg for user stability and confidence.
- Frame: Heavy-duty stainless steel with four anti-slip feet for secure support.
- **Platform:** Durable **ABS material** with drainage holes to prevent water pooling.
- **Design: Double step** with non-slip surface, sturdy metal legs, and reinforced construction.
- Dimensions: Approx.  $470 \times 250 \times 230 \text{ mm } (\pm 25 \text{ mm}).$

Item	Name of Goods, Technical Description, Specifications and Standards	Required
No.		Quantity
20.	Stretcher (ER & Recovery)	55 Units

The Stretcher Should be made of imported PE Material

Should have direction leading system, body tilt system, and up/down function

(500/900mm or better)

Snap-lock buckle belt for securely strapping the patient, is prefixed in the middle of

the stretcher

Two-way in place protection screw.

Should have PP Tuck away two foldable hidden guardrails

Should have Central Control Caster Brake System

Should have Back adjust by gas spring

Should have ABS Bed Panel

Should have Oxygen cyclinder holder

Should have Infusion stand hole

Should have Stainless Steel infusion Pole

Item No.	Name of Goods, Technical Description, Specifications and Standards	Required Quantity
21.	Cupboard Controlled Drug W/Light	01 Unit

Double door cabinets suitable for the storage of drugs & medicines.

Fitted with an anti-pick and drill, key retaining five pin cylinder lock compliant with

The drug & medicine cabinets with lights fitted have 12v DC lighting/warning system, complete with volt-free contact to allow connection to an additional light, CE marked and conforms to the low voltage directives 73/23/EEC, 89/336/EC and 96/68/EC.

Mounting holes provided in back

Made with 0.9mm mild steel welded construction & finished in durable white epoxy polyester coating.

Dimension: 100cm x 30cm x 90cm

Shelves: 8

Shelve Depth: 19cm Door Shelves: 8 Light: Yes Doors: 2



Item No.	Name of Goods, Technical Description, Specifications and Standards	Required Quantity
22.	Trolley General Purpose	20 Units

- Material: Stainless steel SS 304. Polished.
- **Design:** Rectangular frame with **two shelves**, raised edges to prevent spillage.
- Dimensions: Approx. 900 mm (H)  $\times$  750 mm (L)  $\times$  450 mm (W) ( $\pm$ 25 mm).
- **Mobility:** Four (04) smooth swivel castors (≥100 mm).
- Handles: Push handle on one side for easy movement.
- Load Capacity: Each shelf ≥30 kg.
- Finish: Smooth, corrosion-resistant, easy to disinfect.

Item	Name of Goods, Technical Description, Specifications and Standards	Required
No.		Quantity
23.	General Service Trolley 3 Tier	04 Units

- Material: Stainless steel SS 304, polished, rust- and corrosion-resistant.
- **Design:** Three (03) shelves with raised edges to prevent spillage.
- Dimensions: Approx. 900 mm (H)  $\times$  750 mm (L)  $\times$  450 mm (W) ( $\pm$ 25 mm).
- **Mobility:** Four (04) swivel castors (≥100 mm), at least two with brakes.
- **Handles:** Push handle for easy maneuvering.
- Load Capacity: ≥20 kg per shelf.
- Finish: Smooth, easy to clean and disinfect.

Ite	n Name of Goods, Technical Description, Specifications and Standards	Required
N		Quantity
2	. Linen Trolley Covered	20 Units

Trolley to hold bag for collection and transportation of soiled linen across a hospital facility.

Heavy carriage mounted on 4 swivel castors, of which two with brake.

Two supports up from the carriage base connect to upper-side ring structure.

Ring, without lid, accommodates removable linen bag.

Washable canvas bag fit with strong draw string.

High resistance to corrosion (tropical environment)

Frame: epoxy coated tubular steel

Bag: canvas, woven nylon

Caster frame/bracket: steel or nylon

Caster brake: total-lock type (wheel and rotational lock)

Caster wheel: single wheel, mold-on type, non-hooded (for easy maintenance)

Trolley, overall: 45-55x81-99cm (diameter x h)

Frame: 2.7-3.3cm (outside, across)

Swivel castor wheel: 2.25-2.75x6.6-8.5 cm (w x diameter)

Carrying capacity: 45-55kg Linen bag capacity: 90-110L



Item No.	Name of Goods, Technical Description, Specifications and Standards	Required Quantity
25.	Linen Trolley Shelves for Clean Linen	20 Units

- Material: Stainless steel SS 304, polished, rust- and corrosion-resistant.
- **Design:** Multiple fixed shelves (2–3) with raised edges for stacking clean linen.
- Dimensions: Approx. 1600 mm (H)  $\times$  900 mm (L)  $\times$  500 mm (W) ( $\pm$ 25 mm).
- **Mobility:** Four (04) swivel castors (≥125 mm), at least two with brakes.
- **Handles:** Side push handle for easy movement.
- Load Capacity: ≥25–30 kg per shelf.
- Finish: Smooth, hygienic, easy to clean and disinfect.

Item	Name of Goods, Technical Description, Specifications and Standards	Required
No.		Quantity
26.	Granular Ice Producer	02 Units

- Type: Granular/flake ice making machine for hospital laundry applications.
- Capacity: Approx. 60–80 kg ice production per 24 hours or better.
- **Ice Form:** Granular/flake ice, soft and fast cooling, suitable for fabric treatment.
- Storage Bin: Built-in, capacity approx. 15–20 kg or better.
- Material: Stainless steel SS 304 exterior, corrosion-resistant, hygienic design.
- Cooling System: Air-cooled, efficient compressor.
- Power Supply: 220–240 V, 50 Hz, single phase.
- Controls: Automatic ice production and shut-off system.

#### **SPECIAL NOTE**

- 1. The bidder must submit samples upon request by DUHS within the prescribed timeframe. Alternatively, the bidder may provide a reference list of previously delivered quoted products to DUHS to facilitate the technical evaluation and quality assessment of the offered products.
- 2. A sample or partial sample of the item will be approved prior to the final production/supply.
- 3. All parts/accessories must be included for complete operation, and all optional parts must be quoted in the bid, if not quoted, it will be considered Free of cost.
- 4. Documentary evidence verifying the original manufacturer of the goods must be attached.
- 5. DUHS may reject the bid/or part of it, if previous experience in term of supplies and service is not satisfactory.



# Part Two - Section VI Sample Forms



## A. Bid Form and Price Schedules

NIT / IFB N°: \_\_\_\_\_

Date:

To: [name and address of Procuring Agency]					
Gentlemen and/or Ladies:					
Having examined the bidding documents including Addenda Nos. <i>[insert numbers]</i> , the receipt of which is hereby duly acknowledged, we, the undersigned, offer to supply and deliver <i>[description of goods and services]</i> in conformity with the said bidding documents for the sum of <i>[total bid amount in words and figures]</i> or such other sums as may be ascertained in accordance with the Schedule of Prices attached herewith and made part of this Bid.					
We undertake, if our Bid is accepted	ed, to deliver the goods	[insert offered delivery schedule].			
If our Bid is accepted, we will obtain of the Contract Price for the due Procuring agency.		nk in a sum equivalent to percent ontract, in the form prescribed by the			
	s to Bidders, and it sha	ays from the date fixed for Bid opening Ill remain binding upon us and may be			
Until a formal Contract is prepared and executed, this Bid, together with your written acceptance thereof and your notification of award, shall constitute a binding Contract between us.					
Commissions or gratuities, if any, contract execution if we are award		is to agents relating to this Bid, and to ed below:			
Name and address of agent	Amount and Currency	Purpose of Commission or gratuity			
(if none, state "none")  We understand that you are not bo	ound to accept the lowe	st or any bid you may receive.			
Dated thisc	day of20	·			
[Signature}					
[in the capacity of]					
Duly authorized to sign Bid for and	on behalf of				



# (A) PRICE SCHEDULE IN PAK RUPEES Delivered Duty Paid (DDP BASIS - EXCLUDING GST)

## FOR GOODS OFFERED WITHIN THE PROCURING AGENCY'S COUNTRY

Name of Bidder\_\_\_\_\_\_. IFB / NIT Number\_\_\_\_\_\_.

S#	Detailed Specification of Goods	Model / Cat No.	Name of Manufacturer	Country of Origin	Quantity of Stores	Unit	Rate Per Unit (Excluding GST)	Total Price (Excluding GST)
1	2	3	4	5	6	7	8	9
	Tot	tal Amount i	in Pak Rs. on DDF	Basis (Excl	udina GST)			

Name	
In the capacity of	
Signed	
Duly authorized to sign the Bid for and on behalf of _	
Date	



#### **B. Bid Security Form**

Whereas [name of the Bidder] (hereinafter called "the Bidder") has submitted its bid dated [date of submission of bid] for the supply of [name and/or description of the goods] (hereinafter called "the Bid").

KNOW ALL PEOPLE by these presents that WE [name of bank] of [name of country], having our registered office at [address of bank] (hereinafter called "the Bank"), are bound unto [name of Procuring agency] (hereinafter called "the Procuring agency") in the sum of for which payment well and truly to be made to the said Procuring agency, the Bank binds itself, its successors, and assigns by these presents. Sealed with the Common Seal of the said Bank this\_\_\_\_ day of\_\_20\_.

#### THE CONDITIONS of this obligation are:

- 1. If the Bidder withdraws its Bid during the period of bid validity specified by the Bidder on the Bid Form; or
- 2. If the Bidder, having been notified of the acceptance of its Bid by the Procuring agency during the period of bid validity:
  - a. fails or refuses to execute the Contract Form, if required; or
  - b. fails or refuses to furnish the performance security, in accordance with the Instructions to Bidders:

we undertake to pay to the Procuring agency up to the above amount upon receipt of its first written demand, without the Procuring agency having to substantiate its demand, provided that in its demand the Procuring agency will note that the amount claimed by it is due to it, owing to the occurrence of one or both of the two conditions, specifying the occurred condition or conditions.

This guarantee will remain in force up to and including twenty eight (28) days after the period of bid validity, and any demand in respect thereof should reach the Bank not later than the above date.

[signature	& Seal of the bank	I



## **C. Contract Form**

[na	S AGREEMENT made the day of 20 between me of Procuring Agency] (hereinafter called "the Procuring Agency") of the one part and me of Supplier] of [city and country of Supplier] (hereinafter called "the Supplier" of the other to
<i>[bri</i> of t	EREAS the Procuring agency invited bids for certain goods and ancillary services, viz., ef description of goods and services] and has accepted a bid by the Supplier for the supply nose goods and services in the sum of [contract price in words and figures] (hereinafter ed "the Contract Price").
NO	W THIS AGREEMENT WITNESSETH AS FOLLOWS:
1.	In this Agreement words and expressions shall have the same meanings as are respectively assigned to them in the Conditions of Contract referred to.
2.	The following documents shall be deemed to form and be read and construed as part of this Agreement, viz.:
	<ul> <li>a) the Bid Form and the Price Schedule submitted by the Bidder;</li> <li>b) the Schedule of Requirements;</li> <li>c) the Technical Specifications;</li> <li>d) the General Conditions of Contract;</li> <li>e) the Special Conditions of Contract; and</li> <li>f) the Procuring agency's Notification of Award.</li> </ul>
3.	In consideration of the payments to be made by the Procuring agency to the Supplier as hereinafter mentioned, the Supplier hereby covenants with the Procuring agency to provide the goods and services and to remedy defects therein in conformity in all respects with the provisions of the Contract
4.	The Procuring agency hereby covenants to pay the Supplier in consideration of the provision of the goods and services and the remedying of defects therein, the Contract Price or such other sum as may become payable under the provisions of the contract at the times and in the manner prescribed by the contract.
	WITNESS whereof the parties hereto have caused this Agreement to be executed in ordance with their respective laws the day and year first above written.
Sig	ned, sealed, delivered bythe (for the Procuring agency)
Sia	ned sealed delivered by the (for the Supplier)



# **D. Performance Security Form**

To: [name of Procuring agency]
WHEREAS [name of Supplier] (hereinafter called "the Supplier") has undertaken, in pursuance of Contract No.[reference number of the contract] dated
AND WHEREAS it has been stipulated by you in the said Contract that the Supplier shall furnish you with a bank guarantee by a reputable bank for the sum specified therein as security for compliance with the Supplier's performance obligations in accordance with the Contract.
AND WHEREAS we have agreed to give the Supplier a guarantee:
THEREFORE WE hereby affirm that we are Guarantors and responsible to you, on behalf of the Supplier, up to a total of [amount of the guarantee in words and figures], and we undertake to pay you, upon your first written demand declaring the Supplier to be in default under the Contract and without cavil or argument, any sum or sums within the limits of [amount of guar- antee] as aforesaid, without your needing to prove or to show grounds or reasons for your demand or the sum specified therein.
This guarantee is valid until the day of_20
Signature and seal of the Guarantors
[name of bank or financial institution]
[address]
[date]



# E. Bank Guarantee for Advance Payment

To: [name of Procuring agency]
[name of Contract]
Gentlemen and/or Ladies:
In accordance with the payment provision included in the Special Conditions of Contract, which amends Clause 16 of the General Conditions of Contract to provide for advance payment, [name and address of Supplier] (hereinafter called "the Supplier") shall deposit with the Procuring agency a bank guarantee to guarantee its proper and faithful performance under the said Clause of the Contract in an amount of [amount of guarantee in figures and words].
We, the [bank or financial institution], as instructed by the Supplier, agree unconditionally and irrevocably to guarantee as primary obligator and not as surety merely, the payment to the Procuring agency on its first demand without whatsoever right of objection on our part and without its first claim to the Supplier, in the amount not exceeding [amount of guarantee in figures and words].
We further agree that no change or addition to or other modification of the terms of the Contract to be performed thereunder or of any of the Contract documents which may be made between the Procuring agency and the Supplier, shall in any way release us from any liability under this guarantee, and we hereby waive notice of any such change, addition, or modification.
This guarantee shall remain valid and in full effect from the date of the advance payment received by the Supplier under the Contract until [date].
Yours truly,
Signature and seal of the Guarantors
[name of bank or financial institution]
[address]



[date]

#### F. Manufacturer's Authorization Form

[See Clause 13.3 (a) of the Instructions to Bidders.]

To:
The [Procuring Agency]
Karachi.

WHEREAS [name of the Manufacturer] who are established and reputable manufacturers of [name and/or description of the goods] having factories at [address of factory] do hereby authorize [name and address of Agent] to submit a bid, and subsequently negotiate and sign the Contract with you against IFB No. [reference of the Invitation to Bid] for the above goods manufactured by us.

We hereby extend our full guarantee and warranty as per Clause 15 of the General Conditions of Contract for the goods offered for supply by the above firm against this Invitation for Bids.

We hereby undertake that we will provide the complete after sale services support in case of agency transfer or withdrawn from the bidder and will inform timely of any transition.

Our representative may be reached in need of support, Name:
Designation:
Email Address:

[signature for and on behalf of Manufacturer]

Note: This letter of authority should be on the letterhead of the Manufacturer and should be signed by a person competent and having the power of attorney to bind the Manufacturer. It should be included by the Bidder in its bid.



# **G. Integrity Pact (AFFIDAVIT)**

# DECLARATION OF FEES, COMMISSION AND BROKERAGE ETC. PAYABLE BY THE SUPPLIERS/CONTRACTORS/CONSULTANTS.

Contract Number:	Dated:
Contract Value:	
Contract Title:	
procurement of any contract, rig	r/Consultant] hereby declares that it has not obtained or induced the ght, interest, privilege or other obligation or benefit from Government strative subdivision or agency thereof or any other entity owned or any corrupt business practice.
represents and warrants that it has to anyone and not given or agroutside Pakistan either directly affiliate, agent, associate, broke any commission, gratification, bor otherwise, with the object of	of the foregoing, [Name of Supplier/ Contractor/ Consultant] as fully declared the brokerage, commission, fees etc. paid or payable reed to give and shall not give or agree to give to anyone within or or indirectly through any natural or juridical person, including its er, consultant, director, promoter, shareholder, sponsor or subsidiary, bribe, finder's fee or kickback, whether described as consultation fees obtaining or inducing the procurement of a contract, right, interest, benefit, in whatsoever form, from Procuring Agency (PA), except that red pursuant hereto.
of all agreements and arrangement	r/Consultant] certifies that it has made and will make full disclosurements with all persons in respect of or related to the transaction with on or will not take any action to circumvent the above declaration.
any false declaration, not making defeat the purpose of this declaration interest, privilege or other obliness.	<u>Consultant</u> accepts full responsibility and strict liability for making full disclosure, misrepresenting facts or taking any action likely to ration, representation and warranty. It agrees that any contract, right ligation or benefit obtained or procured as aforesaid shall, without remedies available to PA under any law, contract or other instrument.
Supplier/Contractor/Consultate account of its corrupt business p to ten time the sum of any commof Supplier/Contractor/Consultate production of Supplier/Con	and remedies exercised by PA in this regard, [Name of ant] agrees to indemnify PA for any loss or damage incurred by it on practices and further pay compensation to PA in an amount equivalent mission, gratification, bribe, finder's fee or kickback given by [Name altant] as aforesaid for the purpose of obtaining or inducing the light, interest, privilege or other obligation or benefit, in whatsoever
[Procuring Agency]	[Supplier /Contractor/Consultant]



# **Sample Forms**



# (FORM A) HUMAN RESOURCE INCLUDING DETAIL OF TECHNICAL TEAM

S. #	Name	Designation	Contact Number	Posted Location	Date of Joining	Education	Trainings (Equipment, Country)

Note: Supporting Documents must be provided for each employee.	
Name	
In the capacity of	
Signed	
Duly authorized to sign the Bid for and on behalf of	
Date	



# (FORM B) COMPLIANCE SHEET/ TECHNICAL EVALUATION SHEET

Name the Vendor:		
Make/Manufacturer:		
Model:	Year of introduction:	
Country of Origin of the Goods:		
Country of Manufacturer of the Goods:		
Country of Major Parts Sourcing:		
Number of units installed in Pakistan:		
Use full life as per manufacturer (in Years):		
Dra installation requirement		
Pre-installation requirement. Electrical Connection:		
Grounding:		
Backup Supply:		
Water (RO/DI with flow):		
Drain:		
Any other Requirements:		

			Page # of the supporting
S. #	Tender Specification	Offered Specification	Document
	•	·	

Note: Supporting documents must be provided



# <u>(FORM - C)</u>

# FINANCIAL EVALUATION SHEET

Year	Annual Turnover for the last 3 years Year (PKR)
Year 1	
Year 2	
Year 3	
TOTAL	
Average Turn-over in 3 years	

Financial Information in PKR	Year 1	Year 2	Year 3
Total Assets (TA)			
Total Liabilities (TL)			
Current Assets (CA)			
Current Liabilities (CL)			
Total / Gross Revenue (TR)			

Supporting Document	Yes / No	
Income Tax Returns	Year 1	
	Year 2	
	Year 3	



# (FORM - D)

## LIST OF INSTALLATION / REFERENCE CLIENT

Name of Equipment:	
Model:	
Make/Manufacturer:	
Country of Origin of the Manufacturer:	
Country of Origin of Equipment/Goods:	

S. #	Department	Name of Institute	City	Date of Installation	Date of PO / Satisfactory Certificate
	•				

Note: Valid documentary evidence must be enclosed.





E-PAPER | NOVEMBER 13, 2025

What later payers nearly beliefs when nation being cond was that you belief some from breath



# DOW UNIVERSITY OF HEALTH SCIENCES

DUHS/DP/2025/329/333

Dated 10 November 2025

### **INVITATION FOR BIDS (IFB)**

Dow University of Health Sciences, Karachi (DUHS) invites e-bids through E-Pak Acquisition and Disposal System (EPADS) from the manufacturers or their authorized agents / distributors. Bidders must be register and appear on the 'List of Active Taxpayers' of FBR/SRB for income tax and GST/SST (whichever is applicable) for the supply of following categories/items/goods under ADP Scheme No. 805/2025-26, "Establishment of Trauma Center, BSL-3 Lab and Provision of Support Services at Institute of Chest Diseases, Ojha Campus of DOW University of Health Sciences, Karachi". Bidding Documents containing detailed Terms and Conditions can be viewed/downloaded from https://portalsindh.eprocure.gov.pk/#/ OR https://duhs.edu.pk

Electronic bids should be submitted through EPADS only. Manual bids will not be received/entertained. Interested bidders are required to register themselves on the EPAD System at the link https://sindh.eprocure.gov.pk/#/supplier/registration for submission of electronic bids.

The bids, prepared according to the instructions provided in the bidding documents, must be submitted on EPADS by 28 November 2025 at 1000 Hrs. The original instrument of the tender fee of Rs. 2,000/- (Non-refundable) and bid security not less than two percent (2%) of the estimated value of the tender OR item as per following details must be reach the procuring agency (Procurement Directorate at Central Warehouse, Dow University of Health Sciences (Ojha Campus), SUPARCO Road, off Main University Road, Gulzar-e-Hijri, Scheme No. 33, Karachi) before the deadline for submission of e-bids, which will be opened on the same day at 1030 Hrs.:

S#	Category	Tender Reference No:	Amount of Bid Security
1.	Procurement of the Hospital Waste Disposal System CFR/C&F or DDP Basis (Excluding GST) Single Stage - Two Envelope Procedure under Rule 46(2) of SPP Rules 2010	DUHS/DP/ 2025/329	Pak Rs. 2,515,200/- (2% of Estimated Cost)
2.	Procurement of the Equipment & Instruments CFR/C&F or DDP Basis (Excluding GST) Single Stage - Two Envelope Procedure under Rule 46(2) of SPP Rules 2010	DUHS/DP/ 2025/330	Amount indicated against each item in Section V of Bidding Documents (2% of Estimated Cost)
3.	Procurement of the Hospital Furniture & Fixtures DDP Basis (Excluding GST) Single Stage - One Envelope Procedure under Rule 46(1) of SPP Rules 2010	DUHS/DP/ 2025/331	Pak Rs. 304,560/- (2% of Estimated Cost)
4.	Procurement of the Surgical Instruments DDP Basis (Excluding GST) Single Stage - One Envelope Procedure under Rule 46(1) of SPP Rules 2010	DUHS/DP/ 2025/332	Pak Rs. 116,580/- (2% of Estimated Cost)
5.	Procurement of the Office Furniture & Fixtures DDP Basis (Excluding GST) Single Stage - One Envelope Procedure under Rule 46(1) of SPP Rules 2010	DUHS/DP/ 2025/333	Pak Rs. 103,440/- (2% of Estimated Cost)

#### Note:

- For any query regarding e-bidding, please contact the Director Procurement Office at Tel: 021-38771111 (Ext. 4433)
- In case Govt. announces any public holiday or any unfavorable circumstances the tender/bids will be submitted and opened on the next working day, at the same venue and time.
- The purchaser reserves the right to reject any/all bids under the relevant provisions of SPP Rules 2010 (Amended).
- In case of any difficulty, prospective bidders may contact the EPADS Helpline 051-111-137-237 during working days/hours.

Director Procurement Dow University of Health Sciences, Karachi www.duhs.edu.pk



# WWW.jang.com.pk Www.jang.com.pk JangDotComDotPk ignag.schibar ignag.schibar









